
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

AAuugguusstt  11,,  22002222  
  



 
July 29, 2022  11:16:25 AM 

 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

AUGUST 1, 2022 
COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM & LIVESTREAM ON FACEBOOK 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Vice-Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 2 6:15 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes for June 28 and July 5 Regular Meeting & Closed 
Sessions 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-025 Support of Display of US Motto 
d) Resolution 2022-026 MOA w/Pettigrew Regional Library 
e) Motorsports Grant Agreement 
f) Resolution 2022-028 Scrap Tires 

 
Item 3    6:20 PM  Recognition of Leadership Academy Participants, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 4    6:30 PM Geenex Solar, LLC, Update on Hwy 99 Project, Ms. Kara Price 
 
Item 5  6:50 PM Department Information Update:  MTW Health Dept., Mr. Wes Gray, Director 
 
Item 6  7:10 PM Late Business Personal Property Listing and Application for Property Tax 

Exemption or Exclusion, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 7  7:20 PM  Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk 
 
Item 8  7:30 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
  
Item 9 7:40 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
Item 10 7:50 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  

(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
 
      

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   1  
 
       DATE:   August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  2 
 
       DATE:  August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 
a) Approval of Minutes for July 5, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Sessions of 

April 4, May 2, May 16 and June 6, 2022 – See attached (at the end of the 
package) 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts—See attached 
 
c) Resolution 2022-025 Support of Display of US Motto—See attached 
 
d) Resolution 2022-026 MOA w/Pettigrew Regional Library—See attached 
 
e) Motorsports Grant Agreement—See attached 
 
f) Resolution 2022-028 Scrap Tires—See attached 

 
 

 
 













� �����������	�	��
������
������	��	������������������� !�"#$�%�&'�()*���+�'���,-�)�.���/�
01123455678983:39;:<86:=><5?@AB5@C5;99>D67<3=D78>DE71=D2F92=F1GD17HD=H=I21J98D722EJ671J9835

KLM�NOPLQRMST�UPV�SOSMWT�XQYMZ�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�\]PL�̂QZPSMVQ[R_�N[ZV�[̀VMR�[]S�aS[aMSVT�VOb�ZVOV]VMZ�aS[ZPSQcM�MbOPVWT�dLOV�ZL[]ŴLOaaMR�QR�O�XQYMR�ZQV]OVQ[R_KLMSM�OSM�O�̀Md�VOb�P[WWMPVQ[R�ZQV]OVQ[RZ�QR�dLQPL�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�LOYM�̀WMbQcQWQVTe�L[dMYMS_��f[RZQ̂MS�VLM�]R̀MVVMSM̂�O]VL[SQVT�[̀�VObP[WWMPV[SZ�V[�dOQYM�VLM�ghi�aMROWVT�̀[S�cÔ�PLMPjZ�kl_m_�ghnopnqr�[S�VLM�[aVQ[R�̀[S�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRV�c[OŜZ�V[�dOQYM�̂QZP[YMST�cQWWZ_�l_m_�ghnopgskjr_UR[VLMS�[̀�VLMZM�̂QZPSMVQ[ROST�ZQV]OVQ[RZ�QZ�VLM�V[aQP�[̀�V[̂OTtZ�cW[X�a[ZVu�̂MPQZQ[RZ�cT�X[YMSRQRX�c[OŜZ�V[�OWW[d�WOVM�MbM\aVQ[ROaaWQPOVQ[RZ�̀[S�vX[[̂�PO]ZM_w��l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOgr_��KLOV�ZVOV]VM�̂[MZ�R[V�̂M̀QRM�vX[[̂�PO]ZMwe�WMOYQRX�QV�]a�V[�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�V[M̂PQ̂M�̀[S�VLM\ZMWYMZ�dLOV�̀OPVZ�x]ZVQ̀T�WOVM�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ_�KLM�S]WMZ�P[RPMSRQRX�MbM\aVQ[R�OR̂�MbPW]ZQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�OSM�LOaaQWT�P[R̀QRM̂�V[�O�ZQRXWM�ZVOV]VMe�l_m_�ghnosqs_g_��ky[S�[]S�a]Sa[ZMZeVLM�VMS\Z�vMbM\aVQ[RZw�OR̂�vMbPW]ZQ[RZw�OSM�QRVMSPLORXMOcWM_��K[�jMMa�QV�ZQ\aWMe�ztWW�x]ZV�POWW�VLM\�OWW�vMbM\aVQ[RZ_wrU�aSMPQ[]Z�̀Md�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OSM�O]V[\OVQPe�\MORQRX�VLOV�VLM�VObaOTMS�QZ�MRVQVWM̂�V[�O�aS[aMSVT�VOb�cSMOj�dQVL[]V�VLM�RMM̂�V[�̀QWM�OROaaWQPOVQ[R�[S�VOjM�ORT�[VLMS�OPVQ[R_��KLMZM�vO]V[\OVQPw�MbM\aVQ[RZ�QRPW]̂M�X[YMSR\MRV�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_gre�QRYMRV[SQMZ�kl_m_�ghnos{nkpsOre�kppr�|�kp}re�OR̂e�Q\a[SVORVWTe�[]S�{noQRPL�̀WOVoZPSMMR�VMWMYQZQ[RZ�OR̂�f[OPL�~�c[ccWMLMÔ�P[WWMPVQ[RZ�kR[Roc]ZQRMZZ�aMSZ[ROWaS[aMSVTe�l_m_�ghnos{nkgnr_U�WOSXMS�R]\cMS�[̀�MbM\aVQ[RZ�SM�]QSM�[RWT�O�ZQRXWM�OaaWQPOVQ[R_���RPM�OaaS[YM̂e�VLM�MbM\aVQ[R�SM\OQRZ�QR�aWOPM�]RVQW�VLM�P[]RVT�WMOSRZ[̀�O�PLORXM�QR�VLM�aS[aMSVTtZ�]ZM�[S�[dRMSZLQa�[S�[VLMS�PSQVMSQ[R�̀[S�MWQXQcQWQVT_��m[\MVQ\MZ�VLOV�QR̀[S\OVQ[R�P[\MZ�Y[W]RVOSQWT�̀S[\�VLMVObaOTMSe�c]V�\[SM�[̀VMR�QV�P[\MZ�QR�VLM�̀[S\�[̀�O�̂QZP[YMST�\ÔM�cT�VLM�P[]RVT_KLM�WQZV�[̀�ZQRXWMoOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ�QRPW]̂M�SMWQXQ[]Z�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_pre�M̂]POVQ[ROW�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_}re�PLOSQVOcWMaS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_�re�SMZQ̂MRVQOW�aS[aMSVT�[dRM̂�cT�ZMRQ[SZ�dQVL�WQ\QVM̂�QRP[\MZ�kVLM�MŴMSWT�OR̂�̂QZOcWM̂�MbPW]ZQ[Re�l_m_�ghnos{{_gre�OR̂�O�P[]aWM�̂[�MR�\[SM_�bM\aVQ[RZ�VLOV�OSM�R[V�O]V[\OVQP�[S�ZQRXWMoOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OSMe�cT�̂M̀O]WVe�������oOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ_���bO\aWMZ�QRPW]̂M�VLMPQSP]QV�cSMOjMS�kl_m_�ghnos{{_g�r�OR̂�VLM�RMd�aS[YQZQ[RZ�P[YMSQRX�]RZ[Ŵ�Q\aS[YM\MRVZ�V[�SMZQ̂MRVQOW�OR̂�P[\\MSPQOW�aS[aMSVT�̂QZP]ZZM̂LMSM_N[ZV�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�OSM�̂]M�cT�VLM�PW[ZM�[̀�VLM�WQZVQRX�aMSQ[̂e�dLQPL�MR̂Z��OR]OST�pg�OcZMRV�OR�MbVMRZQ[R�cT�VLM�P[]RVTP[\\QZZQ[RMSZ_�l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOr_���MZQ̂MRVQOW�aS[aMSVT�VOb�SMWQM̀�MbPW]ZQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�kPQSP]QV�cSMOjMSe�̂QZOcWM̂�YMVMSORZe�OR̂�MŴMSWT�|Q̂ZOcWM̂r�OSM�̂]M��]RM�g_�l_m_�ghnos{{_gkPr_�]V�VL[ZM�̂MÔWQRMZ�OSM�R[V�dSQVVMR�QR�ZV[RM_��l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOgr�ZVOVMZ�VLOV�v]a[R�O�ZL[dQRX�[̀�X[[̂�PO]ZM�cT�VLM�OaaWQPORV�̀[S�̀OQW]SM�V[\OjM�O�VQ\MWT�OaaWQPOVQ[Rw�VLM�X[YMSRQRX�c[OŜ�\OT�OPPMaV�WOVM�MbM\aVQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�]a�V[�VLM�PW[ZM�[̀�VLM�POWMR̂OS�TMOS_
�92GFJ;01���?@@C�19��F=3=81��6099E�9���9�=F8I=81�71�10=��8J�=F3J1G�9���9F10��7F9EJ87:



����������	
	���
��
	����
����������

����
����	���������
�����������������
	����������
	������ !"�#�$% &' ()**+ #�,'!-.  /��� +!0&1&�&*1 #�1 2�3% 03*4 #*,1�% �* #*,1�%5  6*4! )*2!314!1�' 4�% #�**'! �* �##!7� (8 0*3)*�- *3 (8+&+19� :1*;- �' )**+ #�,'! 0*3 $��! �77$&#��&*1'5  <��!3' 4�% =! 4*3! '�3&#�5  >*2!314!1�' 4&)�� !2!1 =! �=$! �* �+*7� +&00!3!1�'��1+�3+' 0*3 +&00!3!1� �%7!' *0 ��"7�%!3'5  ?*44!3#&�$ ��"7�%!3' ;�* �3! !"7!#�!+ �* =! 4*3! �;�3! *0 ��! 0&1�1#&�$ *=$&)��&*1' *03,11&1) � =,'&1!'' 4&)�� =! �!$+ �* � 4*3! +!4�1+&1) +!0&1&�&*1 *0 ()**+ #�,'!- ���1 !$+!3$% 3!'&+!1�&�$ ��"7�%!3'@ 0*3 !"�47$!58 '�% (4&)��- =!#�,'! ;! ��2!19� 3!#!&2!+ 4,#� ),&+�1#! 03*4 ��! A3*7!3�% /�" ?*44&''&*1 *3 ��! '���! #*,3�' *1 ��&' �*7&#581 $��! BCDC �1+ !�3$% BCDD@ ��! A3*7!3�% /�" ?*44&''&*1 +!#&+!+ �;* '&4&$�3 �77!�$' &12*$2&1) #�,3#�!' ���� ��+ ',=4&��!+ !"!47�&*1�77$&#��&*1' �0�!3 E!#!4=!3 FD 0*3 ��! ��" %!�3 &1 G,!'�&*15  6,373&'&1)$%@ ��! A/? *3+!3!+ ��! #*,1�% �* �##!7� ��!'! 2!3% $��!�77$&#��&*1'5  /�! A/? �77�3!1�$% +!#&+!+ ���� ��! #�,3#�!' ��+ )**+ #�,'! 0*3 ��!&3 $��! �77$&#��&*1' =!#�,'! ��!% 1!2!3 3!#!&2!+ ��"=&$$' 0*3 ��! +&'7,�!+ 73*7!3�%5  H�+ ��! #�,3#�!' =!!1 =&$$!+ 73*7!3$%@ ��! A/? 3!�'*1!+@ ��!% ;*,$+ ��2! 3!4!4=!3!+ �* ',=4&� ��!�77$&#��&*1 73&*3 �* ��! #$*'! *0 ��! %!�35I' 8 ;3*�! &1 ��&' =$*) 7*'�@ 8 '�3*1)$% +&'�)3!! ;&�� ��!'! A/? +!#&'&*1'5  /�! E!#!4=!3 FD +!�+$&1! #3!��!+ =% >565 DCJKBLB5D &'�='*$,�! 3!)�3+$!'' *0 ;�!��!3 ��! ��"7�%!3 4&)�� ��2! ��+ )**+ #�,'! 0*3 ��! $��! �77$&#��&*1581 � BCDB #�'! &12*$2&1) ��! 4,$�&K4&$$&*1K+*$$�3 M*3�� ?�3*$&1� N!'!�3#� ?�47,' &1 O�11�7*$&'@ ��! '���! #*,3� *0 �77!�$' 0*,1+ ��!#*,1�%9' 3!P!#�&*1 *0 � $��! �77$&#��&*1 �* =! �3=&�3�3% �1+ #�73&#&*,' &1 7�3� =!#�,'! ���� +!#&'&*1 ;�' =�'!+ $�3)!$% *1 ��! �4*,1� *0 ��"+*$$�3' &47$&#��!+ =% ��! 7*�!1�&�$ !"!47�&*15  QG,�$$% �3*,=$&1) &1 ��! #*,3�9' !%!' ;�' ��! 0�#� ���� ��! #*,1�% ;�' ;!$$ �;�3! *0 ��!��"7�%!39' !"!47� '���,' �0�!3 ��! �;* 7�3�&!' ��+ ;*3:!+ #$*'!$% *1 ��! #3!��&*1 *0 � ,1&G,! ��"K&1#3!4!1� 0&1�1#&1) +!�$5 N!�+ 4*3!�=*,� ��&' #�'! �!3!5I++ �* ��&' '�*3� $&'� *0 ()**+ #�,'!- +!#&'&*1' �;* 3!#!1� A/? 3,$&1)' &12*$2&1) '*$�3 0�34'5  R*�� 81 3!S E> 6*$�3 T!''!!@ TT? �1+ 813!S N*#: 6*$�3 Q1!3)% A$�1� TT? &12*$2!+ �77!�$' =% ��"7�%!3' ;�* ��+ $��! �77$&#��&*1' 0*3 ��! '*$�3 !1!3)% !$!#�3&#&�% 73*7!3�%!"#$,'&*1 U>565 DCJKBVJUWJXX +!1&!+ =% ��!&3 3!'7!#�&2! #*,1�&!'5/�! ��"7�%!3'9 *1$% �3),4!1�' &1 ',77*3� *0 ()**+ #�,'!- 0*3 ��!&3 ��3+&1!'' ;!3!@ (�! +&+19� :1*; ;! ��+ �* 0&$! �77$&#��&*1'Y- �1+(<��!3 #*,1�&!' ��2! �##!7�!+ $��! �77$&#��&*1'5-  I' ��! A/? #*33!#�$% 7*&1�!+ *,�@ ��*'! �;* �3),4!1�' �3! &1�!3!1�$% #*1�3�+&#�*3%5  80%*, 0*,)�� 0*3 �1+ 3!#!&2!+ 7!34&''&*1 �* 0&$! $��! !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' &1 *��!3 #*,1�&!'@ %*, *=2&*,'$% ;!3! �;�3! *0 ��! �77$&#��&*13!G,&3!4!1�5  /�! A/? 3!P!#�!+ ��! ��"7�%!3'9 �77!�$' �1+ ,7�!$+ ��! #*,1�&!'9 +!#&'&*1 �* 3!P!#� ��! $��! �77$&#��&*1'5��&$! 8 �)3!! ;&�� ��! 3!',$�@ 8 ��&1: ��! A/? 4&''!+ � 4*3! 0,1+�4!1��$ 7*&1�5  81 *1! *0 ��! �77!�$'@ ��! ��"7�%!3 ',=4&��!+ &�'!"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1 0*3 ��" %!�3 BCDF &1 Z�% BCDW5  /�! �='*$,�! +!�+$&1! 0*3 BCDF !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' ;�' E!#!4=!3 FD@ BCDF@4!�1&1) ���� ��! Z�% BCDW �77$&#��&*1 '�*,$+ ��2! =!!1 3!P!#�!+ 0*3 BCDF ��"!' ;&��*,� ��! 1!!+ �* #*1'&+!3 )**+ #�,'!5  I' &1 ��!#�,3#� �77!�$' 4!1�&*1!+ �=*2!@ ��! A/? #*1�&1,!' �* &)1*3! *3 4&'3!�+ ��! !"7$&#&� '���,�*3% 3!G,&3!4!1� ���� !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' =!0&$!+ =% ��! !1+ *0 ��! #�$!1+�3 %!�35N!�+ �*)!��!3@ ;��� ),&+�1#! +* ��!'! �77!$$��! +!#&'&*1' )&2! #*,1�&!' ;�!1 ��!% &1�!373!� ��! ()**+ #�,'!- '��1+�3+ &1 >565 DCJKBLB5D.  M*� 4,#�@ 3!�$$%5  H!3! �3! ��! =!'� $!''*1' 8 #�1 )$!�1 03*4 ��!'! #�'!'SD5 E*19� =�'! ��! +!0&1&�&*1 *0 ()**+ #�,'!- *1 ��! �4*,1� *0 ��" +*$$�3' &12*$2!+ ;&�� ��! 7*�!1�&�$ !"#$,'&*15 /�!'*7�&'�&#��&*1 *0 ��! ��"7�%!3 U)$*=�$ #*37*3��&*1 2'5 !$+!3$% �*4!*;1!3X 4&)�� =! � 3!�'*1�=$! =�'&' 0*3 �77$%&1)+&00!3!1� ()**+ #�,'!- 3!G,&3!4!1�' �* +&00!3!1� #�'!'5  R,� ��! =�3 0*3 $��! �77$&#��&*1' '�*,$+ 1*� =! '!� �&)�!3'&47$% =!#�,'! ��! 3!G,!'�!+ !"!47�&*1 &12*$2!' � $*� *0 4*1!%5B5 8�9' 0&1! �* 3!P!#� $��! �77$&#��&*1' &0 ��! =!'� �3),4!1� ��! ��"7�%!3 *00!3' &'@ (8 +&+19� :1*; 8 ��+ �* 0&$! �1�77$&#��&*15- /�&' &' !'7!#&�$$% �3,! 0*3 #*44!3#&�$ ��"7�%!3' ;�* 0�#! '&4&$�3 !"!47�&*1 G,!'�&*1' &1 4,$�&7$!#*,1�&!'5F5 <1! #*,1�% 1!!+ 1*� 3!�#� ��! '�4! +!#&'&*1 �' +&+ �1*��!3 #*,1�% *1 � '&4&$�3 !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1 03*4 � '&4&$�3U*3 ��! '�4!X ��"7�%!35W5 ��&$! ��! 0�&$,3! �* 3!#!&2! � ��" =&$$ &' 1*� �1 !"#,'! �* �2*&+ 7�%&1) ��"!' U'!! ��&' =$*) 7*'�X@ &� 4&)�� =! �1�##!7��=$! !"#,'! 0*3 � $��! !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*15J5 R! #*1'&'�!1�5 80 ��! #*,1�% 3*,�&1!$% �##!7�' �$$ $��! �77$&#��&*1'@ &� 4�% =! �*,)� 0*3 ��! #*,1�% �* P,'�&0% � ',++!1';&�#� �* � 4*3! '�3&#� +!0&1&�&*1 *0 )**+ #�,'!5  8+!�$$%@ ��! =*�3+ '�*,$+ +!2!$*7 � ;3&��!1 7*$&#% *1 �*; &� +!0&1!')**+ #�,'! &1 ��!'! '&�,��&*1' �1+ ��!1 �77$% ���� 7*$&#% &1 �$$ �77!�$'5 I ;3&��!1 7*$&#% ;&$$ =! !'7!#&�$$% &47*3��1�&0 %*,3 #*,1�% ��' =!!1 $!1&!1� *1 $��! �77$&#��&*1' &1 ��! 7�'� =,� ;&'�!' �* �77$% � 4*3! +!4�1+&1) '��1+�3+ )*&1)0*3;�3+5  I+*7�&1) � ;3&��!1 7*$&#% +!'#3&=&1) ��! =*�3+9' 1!; ,1+!3'��1+&1) *0 ()**+ #�,'!- U�1+ �77$%&1) ����1!; 7*$&#% #*1'&'�!1�$% )*&1) 0*3;�3+X ;&$$ �!$7 73*�!#� ��! #*,1�%9' +!#&'&*1' *1 �77!�$ �* ��! A/? *3 ��! '���!#*,3�'5

�� � � �

[
������� \ ���� �
 ]����	� ̂��

� 
_ ̀
a��	��	� �� ��� b	�a������ 
_ c
��� [��
��	��



���������	��
	
��
�
����	��������	���	������	�
��������	�
�������
������
��������������
���
����������
		��		�
	�������
�
	��������
���
���������	
����	��������	���	�����
�����������������������������	
����������
��	
���������	
������	
	����������
���		������������������������
���
��������	�	����

��	
�������	��������	����������
�����������	
	��	��������
�
��������	
��������
�
�������������������������
���
��������������	����
�	
���	�����
������� 	��
�	��
�������
	��
���

����������������
�!���	���
��������������
���
����"!#�$$$%�&����'����
�	�!����������("�"���
��)�����"���
��)�����("�*+,--'$$$%.�
'�����	��
	/	��
���

��.��
�
����
�-0-
-11
200-.������3�-0-
-1*
*+%+


����	455�����	
	��
���

��5*%0,5%-5����'���	
'���'���
'����
���'��3'
3
������'�����������	56789�:;<;=�>?8@?=A�@B;�CD?@<7=E�F?G=@9�@7H�7EIJ=JK@87@?8A�LGK@�KB78;E�MJ@B�I;�B;8�D?G=@9NK�<7@;�7OO<JD7@J?=�O?<JD9A�MBJDB�P�<JQ;�7�<?@R�6KR�>?8@?=�8;O?8@K�@B7@�@B;�O?<JD9�B7K�S;;=�J=�O<7D;�KJ=D;�;78<9�TUVW�7=E�B7K�M?8Q;E�M;<<�K?�X78R��:;8;�JK�7�<JYB@<9�;EJ@;E�Z;8KJ?=�?XCD?@<7=E�F?G=@9NK�O?<JD9[\]̂_̀_]a�b]�cd]b]e�f̀cf_̀ag�bh�â_�cijbekabc]�cl�f̀cf_̀ag�cd]_̀h�ac�m]n_̀hak]n�â_b̀�̀bêah�k]n�cijbekabc]h�b]ojmnb]e�fkgb]e�akp_hk]n�kffjgb]e�lc̀�kjj�_pojmhbc]�k]n�_p_qfabc]h�l̀cq�f̀cf_̀ag�akp_h�b]�k�abq_jg�qk]]_̀r��sbâ�âka�f̀b]obfj_�b]�qb]ntakpfkg_̀�]_ej_oa�c̀�cu_̀hbêa�dbjj�]ca�oc]habama_�veccn�okmh_w�lc̀�k�jka_�_p_qfabc]�c̀�_pojmhbc]�kffjbokabc]rxccn�okmh_�lc̀�oc]hbn_̀b]e�k�jka_�kffjbokabc]�qkg�b]ojmn_�hbamkabc]h�b]�d̂ bôyẑ_�akpfkg_̀�dkh�ebu_]�b]oc̀ _̀oa�b]lc̀qkabc]�b]�d̀bab]e�̀_ek̀nb]e�â_�qkaa_̀�l̀cq�â_�akp�cllbo_�c̀�â_{r|r�}_fk̀aq_]a�cl�~_u_]m_�ẑ_�akpfkg_̀�h�̀_�m_ha�dcmjn�̂ku_�i__]�abq_jg�ima�lc̀�â_�jka_�n_jbu_̀g�c̀�lkbjm̀_�ac�n_jbu_̀�ig�����t���t��_n�pt�_aor��k]ntẑ_�akpfkg_̀�dkh�b]ocqf_a_]a�c̀�b]okfkobaka_n�c̀�n_fjcg_n�b]�qbjbak̀g�h_̀ubo_�cma�cl�â_�ocm]àg�nm̀b]eâ_�f_̀bcn�b]�d̂ bô�â_�kffjbokabc]�ĥcmjn�̂ku_�i__]�hmiqbaa_nr����ẑ_�im̀n_]�cl�f̀cub]e�icâ�eccn�okmh_�lc̀�â_�jka_�kffjbokabc]�k]n�_jbebibjbag�lc̀�â_�̀_�m_ha_n�_p_qfabc]�c̀�_pojmhbc]�lkjjh�c]�â_akpfkg_̀r��PNE�<?Z;�@?�B;78�B?M�9?G8�D?G=@9�J=@;8O8;@K�@B;�Y??E�D7GK;�K@7=E78E�J=��RCR�VU��T�TRVR��?;K�9?G8�S?78E�7<M79K�7DD;O@�<7@;�7OO<JD7@J?=K�>;Z;8����K;�@B;�D?II;=@�K;D@J?=�S;<?M�@?�KB78;�9?G8�;HO;8J;=D;�MJ@B�?G8�8;7E;8KR

�� � - �

"�����������*%%-������
	
����������������
���
��������
�����
�	�������(�����"�������




Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-025 
RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE DISPLAY OF THE NATIONAL MOTTO 

“IN GOD WE TRUST” IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

 

WHEREAS, the words “In God We Trust” have been used on U.S. currency since 1864; and  
 
WHEREAS, the words “In God We Trust” became the national motto of the United States 

on July 30, 1956, shortly after our nation led the world through the trauma of World War II; and 
 

WHEREAS, the same inspiring slogan is engraved above the entrance to the United States 
Senate Chamber, as well as above the Speaker’s dais in the United States House of Representatives; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, in both war and peace, these words have served as a profound source of strength 
and guidance to many generations of Americans; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court has consistently upheld that the public display of these 
words on local government property does not constitute a violation of the United States 
Constitution’s “separation of church and state” clause when displayed for non-religious purposes; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County now desires to join approximately 64 other counties across 

the State of North Carolina which have chosen to permit the display of these words within various 
public facilities as a patriotic motto and way to solemnize public occasions, and to express 
confidence in the history and traditions of our government, nation, and society; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County’s display of these words shall not be misconstrued as being 

displayed for any specific religious purposes, or as an endorsement of any specific religions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the costs of displaying these words shall be paid entirely from donations made 

by outside organizations such as the US Motto Action Committee interested in helping to facilitate 
the display of the national motto by local governments. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Washington County hereby resolve as 

follows: 
 
1. That the historic and patriotic words of the national motto, “In God We Trust”, may be 

prominently displayed in the Commissioners’ Board Room of the Washington County 
Administration Building in Plymouth, NC. 
 

2. That the historic and patriotic words of the national motto, “In God We Trust”, may also 
be prominently displayed on the Washington County Courthouse and/or within the 
Washington County Courtroom.  

 
 
ADOPTED this the 1st day of August 2022. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
         Julius Walker, Jr., Vice-Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
         Clerk to the Board 
  

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-026 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING WASHINGTON COUNTY  

TO CONTINUE AS A MEMBER OF THE PETTIGREW REGIONAL LIBRARY 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NCGS 153A-270 and NCGS 160A Article 20, Part 1, the 

counties of Chowan, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington entered into a regional agreement to 
jointly operate the Pettigrew Regional Library; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Pettigrew Regional Library provides more efficient and effective public 
library services to the residents of said counties by unifying the administration of the 
participating libraries, providing professional library specialists, and cooperating in the selection 
of books and other materials crossing county lines for the mutual benefit of all citizens of the 
member counties and patrons of the respective libraries; and  
 
 

WHEREAS, the term of the last agreement between the member counties was for ten (10) 
years beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2022 unless the parties extend the term by 
amendment or approval of a new interlocal agreement; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, Pettigrew Regional Library has requested that each of the member counties 
reaffirm their commitment to remain members of the regional library system, and to extend the 
term of the last agreement for an additional ten (10) years effectively beginning July 1, 2022 and 
ending June 30, 2032 by executing a new interlocal agreement under the same terms and 
conditions as those set forth in the last agreement;  
 
  

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Washington County hereby resolve as 
follows: 

 
1. That Washington County hereby agrees to continue its membership in the Pettigrew 

Regional Library for an additional (10) years ending June 30, 2032 under the same 
terms and conditions set forth in the previously approved regional agreement as shown 
in the attached proposed interlocal agreement which the Board Chair and/or Vice-Chair 
is authorized to sign. 

 
ADOPTED this the 1st day of August 2022. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
                Julius Walker, Jr. Vice Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
             Clerk to the Board 
  

 









Provisions for Amendment 

This Agreement may be amended by resolution of each Board of County 
Commissioners and recorded in its minutes. The amendment will be in effect 
after the last county has approved it, or at the time specified in the 
amendment. Requests for amendment may come from either a Board of 
County Commissioners or from the Regional Library Board of Trustees. 

Disagreements related to this Agreement will be resolved by a committee of 
representatives from each county and the Pettigrew Regional Library 

Provisions for Termination 

This Agreement will become effective on July 1, 2022 and continue to be in 
effect for a period of ten (10) years unless sooner terminated as set forth in 
this section. 

The participating counties may, either by amendment to this Agreement or by 
approval of a new interlocal agreement, extend the term of this Agreement for 
such period as they may mutually agree upon. 

The Agreement may be terminated if reasonable cause is presented in writing 
by a participating county to other members of the region, the Pettigrew 
Regional Library Board and the State Library of North Carolina. 

Effective dates for termination will be the same as a withdrawal from the 
Pettigrew Regional Library. 

If the Agreement terminates, and no successor agreement is to be executed, 
the Pettigrew Regional Library will be dissolved and joint assets distributed 
as described under Provisions for Withdrawal and Dissolution . 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 





DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 1 of 14 

 

 

 

 
 

NC Grant ID MGF-016 

This Contract is hereby entered into by and between the North Carolina Department of Commerce (the "Agency"), and 
Washington County (the "Grantee") (referred to collectively as the “Parties”). The Grantee’s federal tax identification 
number is 56-6000349. This grant is made in reliance on the application submitted by Outer Banks Speedway (the 
Motorsports Venue”). 

 
1. Contract Documents: 

 
This Contract consists of the following documents: 
(1) This Contract 
(2) Project Description and Plan (Attachment A) 
(3) Budget (Attachment B) 
(4) The General Terms and Conditions (Attachment C) 
(5) Federal Funds Accountability and Transparency Act Disclosure (Attachment D) 

 
These documents constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and supersede all oral and written statements, 
negotiations, or agreements made, communicated, negotiated, or entered into prior to or contemporaneously with the 
full execution of this Contract. 

 
2. Precedence Among Contract Documents: 

 
In the event of a conflict between or among the terms of the Contract Documents, the terms in the Contract Document 
with the highest relative precedence shall prevail. The order of precedence shall be the order of documents as listed 
in Paragraph 1, above, with the first-listed document having the highest precedence and the last-listed document having 
the lowest precedence. If there are multiple Contract Amendments, the most recent amendment shall have the highest 
precedence and the oldest amendment shall have the lowest precedence. 

 
3. Effective Period: 

 
This Contract shall be effective as of the last date of execution of this Contract and shall terminate when all funds 
disbursed by the Agency to the Grantee under this Contract have been expended by the Grantee for the purposes 
authorized by the North Carolina General Assembly and stated herein, unless terminated sooner under the terms of 
this Contract. All eligible expenditures must be incurred or obligated by December 31, 2024, and expended by 
December 31, 2026, as allowed by federal law and regulation. 

 
4. Grantee’s Duties: 

 
The North Carolina General Assembly has authorized funds to be appropriated to local governments to enhance 
amenities and increase opportunities at the Motorsports Venue, to offset negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 
pandemic, support safe reopening, and aid planned but COVID-19 delayed expansions or upgrades at such venues 
,.pursuant to S.L. 2021-180, the State Appropriations Act of 2021, as amended by S.L. 2021-189, and the Committee 
Report (together the “Authorizing Legislation”), which authorize and direct the Agency to administer these funds. The 
Grantee acknowledges these funds are federal Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Funds (“SFRF”) authorized in section 
9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2, awarded to North Carolina, deposited in the state Treasury, 
and appropriated in North Carolina by the Authorizing Legislation. The North Carolina Office of State Budget and 
Management (OSBM) has determined that this project is provision of government services within the State’s calculated 
reduction of revenue due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, to be administered and reported under Expenditure 
Category 6.1 under the US Department of the Treasury’s (the “Treasury”) Compliance and Reporting Guidance (updated 
February 28, 2022).The Grantee shall implement the grant and ensure that all funds are expended in accordance with 
the Authorizing Legislation, all applicable State and Federal laws, and Treasury guidance for use of these funds. The 
Grantee will ensure that the sub-grantee(s), sub-sub-grantee, etc. comply with all applicable laws, regulations, guidance, 
and reporting requirements. The Grantee shall not use grant funds for debt service, to replenish financial reserves, or 
to satisfy an obligation arising from a judicial settlement or judgment. The Grantee acknowledges that the interpretation 
of the standards applicable to these funds may change with additional Treasury guidance or Congressional or state 
action and agrees to comply with future standards. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 2 of 14 

 

 

5. Agency’s Duties: 
 

The Agency shall pay the Grantee in the manner and in the amounts specified in the Contract Documents. The total 
amount paid by the Agency to the Grantee under this Contract shall not exceed $272,920. 

 
[X] a. There are no matching requirements from the Grantee. 

 
[ ] b. The Grantee’s matching requirement is $ , which shall consist of: 

[ ] In-kind [ ] Cash 
[ ] Cash and In-kind [ ] Cash and/or In-kind 

 
The contributions from the Grantee shall be sourced from non-federal funds. 

The total contract amount is $272,920 

6. Letter of tax- exempt status: 
 

If applicable, the Grantee shall file with the Agency a copy of Grantee's IRS federal tax-exempt letter or 501(c) 
verification form. 

 
7. Reporting Requirements: 

 
The Grantee shall comply with all of the reporting requirements and provisions described in Attachment A hereto. 

 
The Grantee agrees that, prior to spending any grant funds, it shall send the Fiscal Services Division of the Agency a 
true and correct copy of a written project budget (Attachment B) duly authorized and adopted by the Grantee’s board 
of directors or other governing body. Said budget shall contain a narrative description of all budgeted expenditures of 
grant funds, explaining how the budgeted expenditures would meet the objectives of the grant awarded to the Grantee 
and identifying any interest-bearing account into which the Grantee has placed or intends to place any of the budgeted 
expenditures. Should the Grantee thereafter revise, alter, or amend said budget, it shall, within ten (10) business days 
thereafter, send the Fiscal Services Division of the Agency a true and correct copy of said revised, altered, or amended 
budget, which shall also be duly authorized and adopted by the Grantee’s board of directors or other governing body 
and which shall also contain a narrative description of all budgeted expenditures of grant funds. No expenditure of 
grant funds may be made by the Grantee until said budget or revised, altered, or amended budget (as applicable) has 
been received by the Agency. 

 
In addition to the reporting requirements and provisions described in Attachment C and the other reporting requirements 
described in the preceding paragraph of this Contract, the Grantee further agrees to submit to the Agency’s Fiscal 
Services Division a Quarterly Expenditure Report to enable the Agency and its Fiscal Services Division to track the 
status of the Grantee’s expenditures of grant funds on a periodic basis. The Grantee shall continue to complete and 
send said Quarterly Expenditure Reports to the Agency’s Fiscal Services Division until all grant funds received under 
this Contract have been expended and all such expenditures have been fully reported to the Fiscal Services Division of 
the Agency. When submitting said Quarterly Expenditure Reports, the Grantee shall also submit a brief narrative 
paragraph for each such Report summarizing the performance objectives of expenditures and any interest earned by 
the Grantee from the grant funds. 

 
The Grantee will ensure that the sub-grantee(s), sub-sub-grantee, etc. make available information necessary for the 
Grantee and the Agency to fulfill their respective reporting requirements. The Grantee will implement reporting deadlines 
for the subgrantee(s), sub-sub-grantee, etc. that provide adequate time for review by the Grantee and the Agency in 
order for the Grantee and the Agency to meet their respective reporting deadlines. In the event such reports are 
requested by the Agency, the Grantee will additionally provide monthly program and expenditure reports in the form 
prescribed by the Agency. The Agency will establish the form and schedule for the submission of reports under this 
Paragraph and the Grantee will ensure that all reports are materially complete and submitted to the Agency by the date 
set by Agency. 

 
The Grantee certifies that the Motorsports Venue satisfies the eligibility requirements under Section 11.14(c) of S.L. 
2021-180 to receive funds. The Grantee will ensure that uses for these funds are expeditiously undertaken and that the 
funds are put to a qualifying use approved by the Motorsports Venue. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 3 of 14 

 

 

8. Payment Provisions: 
 

Payments will be made on a forward-looking, quarterly basis. To justify payment, the Grantee will submit monthly and 
quarterly program reports and monthly and quarterly expenditure reports. These reports will be submitted by a deadline 
agreed upon by the Parties. 

 
9. Contract Administrators: 

 
All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party to the other and all questions about the contract from one 
Party to the other shall be addressed and delivered to the other Party’s Contract Administrator. The name, post office 
address, street address, telephone number, fax number, and email address of the Parties’ respective initial Contract 
Administrators are set out below. Either Party may change the name, post office address, street address, telephone 
number, fax number, or email address of its Contract Administrator by giving timely written notice to the other Party. 

 
 

For the Agency For the Grantee 
IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE 
Tonia Brown, Accountant 
Department of Commerce 
Fiscal Services Division 
4302 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC  27699-4302 

  Ms. Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
  Clerk to the Board 
  Washington County Government 
  116 Adams Street / P.O. Box 1007 
  Plymouth, NC  27962 

Telephone: (919) 814-4637 Telephone: 252-793-5823 
Fax: (919) 715-1098 Fax:   252-793-1183 
Email: tonia.brown@nccommerce.com Email: jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 

10. Disbursements: 
 

In addition to the other requirements set forth above and in the attached documents concerning the disbursement of 
grant funds by the Grantee (including any sub-grantee(s) and sub-sub-grantee(s)), as well as all requirements imposed 
on grant fund expenditures by applicable law, rules, and regulations, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees, as an 
express condition of this Contract, to make disbursements of all grant funds in accordance with the following 
requirements: 

 
a. The Grantee shall implement adequate internal controls over all disbursements; 
b. The Grantee shall pre-audit all vouchers presented to it for payment to determine: 

• The validity and accuracy of the requested payment; 
• The payment due date; 
• The adequacy of all documentation allegedly supporting the requested payment; and 
• The legality of all disbursements and requested disbursements; 

c. The Grantee shall assure adequate control of signature stamps and plates; 
d. The Grantee shall assure adequate control of all negotiable instruments; and 
e. The Grantee shall implement adequate procedures to ensure that its account balance is solvent and shall 

reconcile its account monthly. 
 

11. Outsourcing: 
 

The Grantee certifies that it has identified to the Agency all jobs related to this Contract that have been outsourced to 
other states within the United States or to other countries, if any. The Grantee further acknowledges that it may not 
outsource to any other state or territory or to any other country any jobs related to this Contract during the term of this 
Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of the Agency. 

 
12. Ethics Law Compliance: 

 
The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that, in its conduct under this Contract and in connection with any and all 
expenditures of grant funds made by it, the Grantee, its officers, agents, and employees shall be and are subject to the 
provisions of the North Carolina State Government Ethics Act, N.C. Session Law 2006-201, House Bill 1843; Session 
Law 2007-348, House Bill 1111 (the “Ethics Act”). The Grantee further acknowledges and agrees that, in the event that 
it grants any of the grant funds awarded hereunder to one or more sub-grantees or sub-sub-grantees, the Grantee shall, 

mailto:tonia.brown@nccommerce.com


DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 4 of 14 

 

 

by contract, ensure that the provisions of the Ethics Act are made applicable to and binding upon any and all of the 
Grantee’s sub-grantees, sub-sub-grantees, etc. 

 
13. Cost Principles: 

 
The Grantee may use funds for administering this SFRF program, including costs of consultants to support effective 
management and oversight, including consultation for ensuring compliance with legal, regulatory, and other 
requirements. Costs must be reasonable and allocable. The Grantee is permitted to charge both direct and indirect 
costs as administrative costs. Direct costs are those that are identified specifically as costs of implementing the SFRF 
program objectives, such as contract support, materials, and supplies for a project. Indirect costs are general overhead 
costs of an organization where a portion of such costs are allocable to the SFRF award such as the cost of facilities or 
administrative functions like a director’s office. Each category of cost should be treated consistently in like circumstances 
as direct or indirect, and the Grantee may not charge the same administrative costs to both direct and indirect cost 
categories, or to other programs. If the Grantee has a current Negotiated Indirect Costs Rate Agreement (“NICRA”) 
established with a Federal cognizant agency responsible for reviewing, negotiating, and approving cost allocation plans 
or indirect cost proposals, then the recipient may use its current NICRA with approval from the Agency. Alternatively, if 
the Grantee does not have a NICRA or its use is not approved by the Agency, the Grantee will use the de minimis rate 
of 10 percent of the modified total direct costs pursuant to 2 CFR 200.414(f). 

14. Final Reports and Certifications: 

The Grantee shall file all reports and certifications, concerning its receipt, handling, and expenditure of all grant funds 
awarded hereunder, including any interest earned by the Grantee from such funds, with the Fiscal Services Division of 
the Agency. 

15. Monitoring and Auditing: 

The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that, from and after the date of execution of this Contract and for the longer of 
1) five (5) years after all State Fiscal Recovery Funds have been expended or returned to Treasury or 2) five (5) years 
following its termination, the books, records, documents, and facilities of the Grantee are subject to being audited, 
inspected, and monitored at any time by the Agency upon its request (whether in writing or otherwise), State or Federal 
auditors, and/or the Treasury. The Grantee and its officers, agents, and employees shall make the Grantee’s books, 
records, documents, and offices/facilities available to all authorized personnel for inspection, audit, and monitoring upon 
request, shall answer any questions posed to them by the auditing agency, and shall provide the requesting agency, 
upon its request, with any documents, records, or information sought by the auditing agency in its efforts to monitor and 
audit the Grantee’s activities regarding the funds awarded under this Contract. The Grantee further agrees to keep and 
maintain all of its books, records, and documents relating in any way to the grant funds awarded hereunder as described 
in Attachment E subject to the longer timelines described in this paragraph. Because SFRF is a single federal award it 
may be necessary to keep records of all project expenditures, including record-keeping by subrecipients, until the 
longest of the timelines runs. Therefore, the Grantee agrees to seek specific written authorization from the Agency for 
destruction of any records prior to five years after all SFRF funds have been expended or returned to Treasury. 

16. Grant Agreement With Sub-Grantee(s): 

In the event that the Grantee grants to a sub-grantee, a sub-sub-grantee, etc. any of the grant funds awarded to the 
Grantee hereunder, the Grantee must retain a signed copy of the contract, letter, or agreement pursuant to which the 
grant funds awarded to the Grantee hereunder are granted to a sub-grantee, a sub-sub-grantee, etc. The Grantee’s 
agreement or contract with the sub-grantee, sub-sub-grantee, etc. shall comply with the requirements established by 
this Contract and applicable State and Federal laws, regulations, guidance, and reporting requirements. The Grantee 
shall insure that the sub-grantee, sub-sub-grantee, etc. fulfills its duties and obligations under the contract, letter, or 
agreement. 

17. Repayment of Grant Funds to Agency: 

In the event that the Grantee, either directly or indirectly (e.g., through a sub-grantee or sub-sub-grantee), commits any 
breach of this Contract which the Grantee fails to fully cure within thirty (30) days of its receipt of written notice from the 
Agency of said breach, the Agency may make demand in writing of the Grantee that it repay the Agency so much of the 
grant funds awarded under this Contract, up to and including 100% of the amount of the award made under this Contract. 
In such an event, the Grantee shall repay said amount to the Agency within thirty (30) days of its receipt of said demand 
for repayment, as well as any interest earned by the Grantee on said amount. 

In addition, in the event that this Contract should be terminated by the Parties or otherwise comes to an end prior to the 
time when the Grantee, its sub-grantee(s), any sub-sub-grantee(s), etc. have expended all of the funds awarded under 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 5 of 14 

 

 

this Contract, the Grantee shall, within thirty (30) days of said termination or contract end, return to the Agency all such 
unexpended funds, as well as any interest earned by the Grantee on such funds. Furthermore, the Grantee shall, by 
contract, ensure that, in the event that its sub-grantee(s) enter into any sub-sub-grant agreements involving any of the 
funds awarded hereunder, all such sub-grantees, sub-sub-grantees, etc. are required to repay to their grantee(s) all 
such unexpended funds, as well as any interest earned by the sub-grantee or sub-sub-grantee on such funds, so that 
the Grantee can return those unexpended funds and interest to the Agency within thirty (30) days of the termination or 
other end of this Contract. In any event, the Grantee shall be and remain liable to the Agency for the repayment to the 
Agency of all grant funds that are unexpended (either by the Grantee or any sub-grantee, sub-sub-grantee, etc.) at the 
time of the termination or other end of this Contract, as well as the repayment of any interest earned by the Grantee, 
sub-grantee or sub-sub-grantee on such funds at that time. 

 
Further, if the Grantee received a grant for which Motorsports Venue submitted incorrect information or was otherwise 
ineligible to apply, the Grantee must forfeit the grant awarded under this subsection and is liable for the amounts 
received. 

 
18. Termination: 

 
Subject to the provisions of paragraph 19 of this Contract, this Contract may be terminated in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in Attachment C hereto; however, the reporting, monitoring, and audit requirements and provisions 
of this Contract shall survive any such termination. 

 
19. Title VI Certification: 

The Grantee certifies its compliance with Title VI Civil Rights laws. The Grantee will also seek certification of compliance 
as may be required of Sub-grantees and contractors. The Grantee acknowledges that it must cooperate in 
demonstrating its efforts on behalf of the State as may be required by the Treasury. 

 
20. Federal Funds Accountability and Transparency Act 

 
Prior to the disbursement of funds the Grantee will complete and submit Attachment F to the Agency. The Federal 
Funds Accountability and Transparency Act (the “FFATA”) requires public disclosure of executive compensation in 
certain federally funded organizations. Prior to the disbursement of funds that Grantee will provide written certification 
stating whether 1) The Grantee received 80% or more of its annual gross revenues from federal awards (contracts or 
subcontracts, loans, grants or subgrants, cooperative agreements) and whether 2) The 
total of the Grantee’s annual federal awards equaled or exceeded $25,000,000? If the answer to both questions is “yes,” 
then the Grantee must publicly report the compensation information of its five most highly compensated executives. 
The Grantee may comply by certifying that this is done through periodic reporting under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 under 15 USC 78m(a) or 15 USC 78o(d), or under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 Section 6104, If not already 
reported, the names and compensation of the five most highly compensated executives must be provided to the 
Agency as a precondition to receiving federal funds. 

 
The Grantee will provide all information requested by the Agency to allow the State to document compliance with the 
FFATA, which may include: 
• Subrecipient identifying and demographic information (e.g., legal name, whether 

registered in SAM.gov, DUNS/UEI/TIN and location) 
• Primary place of performance 
• Related project identification number(s) (created by the recipient) 
• Related project name(s) 
• Period of performance start and end date 
• Quarterly obligation amount 
• Quarterly expenditure amount 

 
 

21. Authorized Signature Warranty: 
 

The undersigned represent and warrant that they are authorized to bind their principals to the terms of this agreement. 
 

In Witness Whereof, the Grantee and the Agency have executed this Contract in duplicate originals, with one original 
being retained by each party. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 6 of 14 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Signature Date 
 
 

Printed Name Title 
 

ATTEST 
 
 

Notary Public Date Notarized 
 
 

Printed Name Title 
 
 

[OFFICIAL SEAL] 
 
 

North Carolina Department of Commerce 
 

17-May-2022 
 

Signature Date 
 

Heather Horton Chief Fiscal Officer 
Printed Name Title 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

Printed Name Date 

Title 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 7 of 14 

 

 

1.  Organization:  Washington County 

2.  Program Description and Plan, Results, Performance Measures: (see attachment) 

 

 
 

As part of this grant agreement, you are required to provide a description of how you will spend the State Fiscal Recovery 
Funds (SFRF) in compliance with the specific purpose as stated in the Appropriations Act. You are also required to submit 
information related to any potential sub-awards and a budget for all funds. Please attach additional sheets as necessary. 

 

 

 
Recipient shall detail below how the organization will spend the SFRF dollars in compliance with the specific purpose(s) as 
stated in the Appropriations Act. The description should provide a detailed understanding of the major activities that will 
occur to include expected results and performance measures. The description should also include anticipated timing of 
those expected results. (Project template descriptions may be used as reference.) 

 
Program Description: The Outer Banks Speedway (OBX Speedway) qualified for this grant as a Small Venue.  OBX 

allows visitors with a need for speed to hit the tracks in Creswell, just a couple of miles west of Columbia.  The all-concrete 
1/8th mile track has a two lane, 50’ ft. wide racing surface where local and visiting speed racers can put the pedal to the metal. 
The 62-acre facility can accommodate 600 race cars and over 10,000 spectators, (in addition to parking for 3,500 spectator 
vehicles).  The track is IHRA sanctioned.  OBX Speedway is currently running Pro Mod, Pro Stocks, ET Brackets and more.  
Folks can swing by throughout the spring, summer and fall months two watch the speediest drag race cars, bikes and stock 
cars in the region battle it out on the hard concrete surface, and races are held approximately every month or so, generally 
from March until October. 

 
 Many events are also “open” races, meaning that amateur bike and car racers can participate typically for a small 
sign-up fee, allowing newcomers to start their racing careers with a splash on the Inner Banks’ most prominent race track. We 
are blessed to be a part of the racing community and why North Carolina has a history of being hailed as the “Racing Capital 
of the Country”. 
 
 Expected Results:  While in the process of applying for the grant, the OBX Speedway was hit with some straight-line 
winds and sustained considerable damage to various parts of their property.  With the upgrades to the OBX Speedway 
facilities and the track itself, this can become a more profitable venture with increased attendance and a variety of events held 
on the grounds of this speedway.   
 
 Performance Measures: 

1. Upgrading track equipment:  With upgraded track equipment, wait time between races will be cut considerably.  
2. Upgrading venue equipment:  The grounds will be able to be taken care of in a lesser amount of time, leaving staff 

with more time to concentrate on the track. 
3. Timing System:  Racers will have confidence in their ability to leave the line and time slips showing race times will 

be more accurate. 
4. Dirt Track:  By creating a separate track for different vehicles, the venue becomes more versatile.  Attendance 

numbers should increase. 
5. Marquee/Outdoor Billboard:  OBX Speedway is off of the main Hwy 64 that carries folks to the Outer Banks.  A 

new billboard will catch the attention of those travelers thus increasing attendance (ticket sales) at the venue. 
6. Paving:  The paving of the track’s return lane will ensure the driver’s safety after making a run down the track. 
7. Utility Shed (w/Concrete Pad):  Container that track equipment was kept in was overturned by straight-line winds 

and was made unusable.  New Shed with Concrete Pad will ensure new equipment would be stored safely and 
would last longer (being out of the elements).  

Please note, you will submit this Attachment as part of the executed Contract. 

Attachment A 
Program Description and Plan 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

Printed Name Date 

Title 

MS&NCD Form 0009A Grant Cover Sheet 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 5/06, 7/07, 8/09, 7/10, 7/11, 7/12, 9/13, 10/15, 8/16, 7/17, 7/18, 7/19, 7/20, 11/21, 2/22, 4/22 Page 8 of 14 

 

 

1.  Organization: Washington County 

 

 
 

As part of this Agreement, you are required to provide a budget detailing how you will spend the SFRF funds in compliance 
with the specific purpose as stated in the Appropriations Act. Please also submit information related to any potential sub- 
awards. Please attach additional sheets as necessary. 

 

 
2.  Budget: 

Line-Item Amount Date of Anticipated Expenditure 
(by quarter) 

OBX Race Car $20,744.10  1st Quarter 
Tractor 504SE $23,630.00  1st Quarter 
Hook Master 7200 Static Track Drag $ 6,200.00  1st Quarter 
Hook Master 1400 Sprayer/14’ Traction 
Compound Sprayer 

$ 5,750.00  1st Quarter 

Equipment Sub System Value Sprayer 
Sponsor Package/ 
Taxes & Shipping 

$ 2,225.00 1st Quarter 

King Quad 400 ASI 4Wheeler $ 6,649.00 1st Quarter 
25-HP V-Twin Dual 62-inch Zero-turn 
Lawnmower 

$ 4,699.00 1st Quarter 

25-HP V-Twin Dual 62-iinc Zero-turn 
Lawnmower 

$ 4,699.00 1st Quarter 

Utility Shed/with lean-to $15,150.76 1st Quarter 
   
30 x 30 Concrete Slab $10,000.00 1st Quarter 
Building Painting & Doors Replacement $15,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Timing System/Scoreboard $33,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Dirt Track $12,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Marquee/Outdoor Billboard $12,000.00 3rd Quarter 
OBX Racing Block $16,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Paving Return Lane $70,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Track Scrubber $ 5,000.00 3rd Quarter 
Contingency $10,173.14 4th Quarter 

 
*Grantee reserves the right to approve substitutions of comparable equipment as deemed necessary and reasonable. 

3.  Sub-awards: 
a. Does the Recipient anticipate that it will sub-award or pass down any funds to 
another organization? 

 Yes X No 

If yes, answer the following: 
b. Name of Sub-recipient c. Program Name d. Amount to Sub-recipient 

   
   
   
   

 
The above budget is for the time period beginning (August 1, 2022 ) and ending (December 31, 2024 ). 
Please note, you will submit this Attachment as part of the executed Contract.

Attachment B 
Budget 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

NGO Form 0008 
Eff. July 1, 2005 
Revised 7/2007, 8/2009, 7/2010, 7/2011, 9/2013, 10/2015, 8/2016, 7/2017, 07/2018, 7/2019, 11/2021, 2/22 

Page 9 of 14 

 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

NGO Form 0009B1 Grants General Terms and Conditions-Private Entities 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 7/2007, 7/2012 Page 10 of 14 

 

 

 
 

DEFINITIONS 
Unless indicated otherwise from the context, the following 
terms shall have the following meanings in this Contract. 
All definitions are from 9 NCAC 3M.0102 unless otherwise 
noted. If the rule or statute that is the source of the 
definition is changed by the adopting authority, the 
change shall be incorporated herein: 

(1) "Agency" (as used in the context of the definitions 
below) shall mean and include every public office, 
public officer or official (State or local, elected or 
appointed), institution, board, commission, 
bureau, council, department, authority or other 
unit of government of the State or of any county, 
unit, special district or other political subagency 
of government. For other purposes in this 
Contract, “Agency” shall mean the entity 
identified as one of the parties hereto. 

(2) "Audit" means an examination of records or 
financial accounts to verify their accuracy. 

(3) "Certification of Compliance" means a report 
provided by the Agency to the Office of the State 
Auditor that states that the Grantee has met the 
reporting requirements established by this 
Subchapter and included a statement of 
certification by the Agency and copies of the 
submitted grantee reporting package. 

(4) "Compliance Supplement" refers to the North 
Carolina State Compliance Supplement, 
maintained by the State and Local Government 
Finance Agency within the North Carolina 
Department of State Treasurer that has been 
developed in cooperation with agencies to assist 
the local auditor in identifying program 
compliance requirements and audit procedures 
for testing those requirements. 

(5) "Contract" means a legal instrument that is used 
to reflect a relationship between the agency, 
grantee, and subgrantee. 

(6) "Fiscal Year" means the annual operating year of 
the non-State entity. 

(7) "Financial Assistance" means assistance that 
non-State entities receive or administer in the 
form of grants, loans, loan guarantees, property 
(including donated surplus property), cooperative 
agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food 
commodities, direct appropriations, and other 
assistance. Financial assistance does not 
include amounts received as reimbursement for 
services rendered to individuals for Medicare and 
Medicaid patient services. 

(8) "Financial Statement" means a report providing 
financial statistics relative to a given part of an 
organization's operations or status. 

(9) "Grant" means financial assistance provided by 
an agency, grantee, or subgrantee to carry out 
activities whereby the grantor anticipates no 

programmatic involvement with the grantee or 
subgrantee during the performance of the grant. 

(10) "Grantee" has the meaning in G.S. 143C-6- 
23(a)(2): a non-State entity that receives a grant 
of State funds from a State agency, department, 
or institution but does not include any non-State 
entity subject to the audit and other reporting 
requirements of the Local Government 
Commission. For other purposes in this Contract, 
“Grantee” shall mean the entity identified as one 
of the parties hereto. 

(11) "Grantor" means an entity that provides 
resources, generally financial, to another entity in 
order to achieve a specified goal or objective. 

(12) "Non-State Entity" has the meaning in N.C.G.S. 
143C-1-1(d)(18): Any of the following that is not a 
State agency: An individual, a firm, a partnership, 
an association, a county, a corporation, or any 
other organization acting as a unit. The term 
includes a unit of local government and public 
authority. 

(13) "Public Authority" has the meaning in N.C.G.S. 
143C-1-1(d)(22): A municipal corporation that is 
not a unit of local government or a local 
governmental authority, board, commission, 
council, or agency that (i) is not a municipal 
corporation and (ii) operates on an area, regional, 
or multiunit basis, and the budgeting and 
accounting systems of which are not fully a part 
of the budgeting and accounting systems of a unit 
of local government. 

(14) "Single Audit" means an audit that includes an 
examination of an organization's financial 
statements, internal controls, and compliance 
with the requirements of Federal or State awards. 

(15)"Special Appropriation" means a legislative act 
authorizing the expenditure of a designated 

amount of public funds for a specific purpose. 
(16) "State Funds" means any funds appropriated by 

the North Carolina General Assembly or collected 
by the State of North Carolina. State funds 
include federal financial assistance received by 
the State and transferred or disbursed to non- 
State entities. Both Federal and State funds 
maintain their identity as they are subgranted to 
other organizations. Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143C- 
6-23(a)(1), the terms "State grant funds" and 
"State grants" do not include any payment made 
by the Medicaid program, the State Health Plan 
for Teachers and State Employees, or other 
similar medical programs. 

(17) "Subgrantee" has the meaning in G.S. 143C-6- 
23(a)(4): A non-State entity that receives State 
funds as a grant from a grantee or from another 
subgrantee but does not include any non-State 
entity subject to the audit and other reporting 

Attachment C 
General Terms and Conditions 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

NGO Form 0009B1 Grants General Terms and Conditions-Private Entities 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 7/2007, 7/2012 Page 11 of 14 

 

 

requirements of the Local Government 
Commission. 

(18) "Unit of Local Government has the meaning in 
G.S. 143C-1-1(d)(29): A municipal corporation 
that has the power to levy taxes, including a 
consolidated city-county as defined by G.S. 
160B-2(1), and all boards, agencies, 
commissions, authorities, and institutions thereof 
that are not municipal corporations. 

 
Relationships of the Parties 

 
Independent Contractor: The Grantee is and shall be 
deemed to be an independent contractor in the 
performance of this Contract and as such shall be wholly 
responsible for the work to be performed and for the 
supervision of its employees. The Grantee represents that 
it has, or shall secure at its own expense, all personnel 
required in performing the services under this agreement. 
Such employees shall not be employees of, or have any 
individual contractual relationship with, the Agency. 

 
Subcontracting and Subgranting: Any subcontracts or 
subgrants entered into by the Grantee with grant funds 
shall be subject to all conditions of this Contract. Payment 
of all subcontractors and subgrantees shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Grantee, and the Agency shall not be 
obligated to pay for any work performed by any 
subcontractor or subgrantee. The Grantee shall be 
responsible for the performance of all subcontractors and 
subgrantees and shall not be relieved of any of the duties 
and responsibilities of this Contract as a result of entering 
into subcontracts or subgrants. Additionally, if said 
Grantee subgrants any grant funds pursuant to this 
Contract, the Grantee shall submit a copy of its policies 
and/or procedures for monitoring subgrantees to the 
Agency. 

 
Subgrantees: The Grantee has the responsibility to 
ensure that all subgrantees, if any, provide all information 
necessary to permit the Grantee to comply with the 
standards set forth in this Contract. 

 
Assignment: No assignment of the Grantee's 
obligations or the Grantee's right to receive payment 
hereunder shall be permitted. However, upon written 
request approved by the issuing purchasing authority, the 
State may: 

(a) Forward the Grantee's payment check(s) directly 
to any person or entity designated by the 
Grantee, or 

(b) Include any person or entity designated by 
Grantee as a joint payee on the Grantee's 
payment check(s). 

In no event shall such approval and action obligate the 
State to anyone other than the Grantee and the Grantee 
shall remain responsible for fulfillment of all contract 
obligations. 

Beneficiaries: Except as herein specifically provided 
otherwise, this Contract shall inure to the benefit of and 
be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 
successors. It is expressly understood and agreed that 
the enforcement of the terms and conditions of this 
Contract, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Agency and 
the named Grantee. Nothing contained in this document 
shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever 
by any other third person. It is the express intention of the 
Agency and Grantee that any such person or entity, other 
than the Agency or the Grantee, receiving services or 
benefits under this Contract shall be deemed an incidental 
beneficiary only. 

 
Indemnity and Insurance 

 
Indemnification: The Grantee agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless the Agency, the State of North Carolina, 
and any of their officers, agents and employees, from any 
claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of 
the Grantee in connection with the performance of this 
Contract. 

 
Insurance: During the term of the contract, the Grantee 
at its sole cost and expense shall provide commercial 
insurance of such type and with such terms and limits as 
may be reasonably associated with the contract. As a 
minimum, the Grantee shall provide and maintain the 
following coverage and limits: 

(a) Worker’s Compensation - The grantee shall 
provide and maintain Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance as required by the laws of North 
Carolina, as well as employer’s liability coverage 
with minimum limits of $500,000.00, covering all 
of Grantee’s employees who are engaged in any 
work under the contract. If any work is sublet, the 
Grantee shall require the subgrantee to provide 
the same coverage for any of his employees 
engaged in any work under the contract. 

(b) Commercial General Liability - General Liability 
Coverage on a Comprehensive Broad Form on 
an occurrence basis in the minimum amount of 
$1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit. (Defense 
cost shall be in excess of the limit of liability.) 

(c) Automobile - Automobile Liability Insurance, to 
include liability coverage, covering all owned, 
hired and non-owned vehicles used in 
performance of the contract. The minimum 
combined single limit shall be $500,000.00 bodily 
injury and property damage; $500,000.00 
uninsured/under   insured   motorist;   and 
$25,000.00 medical payment. 

Providing and maintaining adequate insurance coverage 
is a material obligation of the Grantee and is of the 
essence of this Contract. The Grantee may meet its 
requirements of maintaining specified coverage and limits 
by demonstrating to the Agency that there is in force 
insurance with equivalent coverage and limits that will 
offer at least the same protection to the Agency. All such 
insurance shall meet all laws of the State of North 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

NGO Form 0009B1 Grants General Terms and Conditions-Private Entities 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 7/2007, 7/2012 Page 12 of 14 

 

 

Carolina. Such insurance coverage shall be obtained 
from companies that are authorized to provide such 
coverage and that are authorized by the Commissioner of 
Insurance to do business in North Carolina. The Grantee 
shall at all times comply with the terms of such insurance 
policies, and all requirements of the insurer under any 
such insurance policies, except as they may conflict with 
existing North Carolina laws or this Contract. The limits 
of coverage under each insurance policy maintained by 
the Grantee shall not be interpreted as limiting the 
grantee’s liability and obligations under the contract. 

 
Default and Termination 

 
Termination by Mutual Consent: The Parties may 
terminate this Contract by mutual consent with 60 days’ 
notice to the other party, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
Termination for Cause: If, through any cause, the 
Grantee shall fail to fulfill its obligations under this 
Contract in a timely and proper manner, the Agency shall 
have the right to terminate this Contract by giving written 
notice to the Grantee and specifying the effective date 
thereof. In that event, all finished or unfinished 
deliverable items prepared by the Grantee under this 
Contract shall, at the option of the Agency, become its 
property and the Grantee shall be entitled to receive just 
and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed on such materials, minus any payment or 
compensation previously made. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing provision, the Grantee shall not be relieved of 
liability to the Agency for damages sustained by the 
Agency by virtue of the Grantee’s breach of this 
agreement, and the Agency may withhold any payment 
due the Grantee for the purpose of setoff until such time 
as the exact amount of damages due the Agency from 
such breach can be determined. The filing of a petition 
for bankruptcy by the Grantee shall be an act of default 
under this Contract. 

 
Waiver of Default: Waiver by the Agency of any default 
or breach in compliance with the terms of this Contract by 
the Grantee shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
subsequent default or breach and shall not be construed 
to be modification of the terms of this Contract unless 
stated to be such in writing, signed by an authorized 
representative of the Agency and the Grantee and 
attached to the contract. 

 
Availability of Funds: The parties to this Contract agree 
and understand that the payment of the sums specified in 
this Contract is dependent and contingent upon and 
subject to the appropriation, allocation, and availability of 
funds for this purpose to the Agency. 

 
Force Majeure: Neither party shall be deemed to be in 
default of its obligations hereunder if and so long as it is 
prevented from performing such obligations by any act of 
war, hostile foreign action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes, 
civil insurrection, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other 
catastrophic natural event or act of God. 

 

Survival of Promises: All promises, requirements, 
terms, conditions, provisions, representations, 
guarantees, and warranties contained herein shall survive 
the contract expiration or termination date unless 
specifically provided otherwise herein, or unless 
superseded by applicable federal or State statutes of 
limitation. 

 
Intellectual Property Rights 

 
Copyrights and Ownership of Deliverables: All 
deliverable items produced pursuant to this Contract are 
the exclusive property of the Agency. The Grantee shall 
not assert a claim of copyright or other property interest in 
such deliverables. 

 
Federal Intellectual Property Bankruptcy Protection 
Act: The Parties agree that the Agency shall be entitled 
to all rights and benefits of the Federal Intellectual 
Property Bankruptcy Protection Act, Public Law 100-506, 
codified at 11 U.S.C. 365 (n) and any amendments 
thereto. 

 
Compliance with Applicable Laws 

 
Compliance with Laws: The Grantee shall comply with 
all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, and 
licensing requirements that are applicable to the conduct 
of its business, including those of federal, state, and local 
agencies having jurisdiction and/or authority. 

 
Equal Employment Opportunity: The Grantee shall 
comply with all federal and State laws relating to equal 
employment opportunity. 

 
 

Oversight 
 

Access to Persons and Records: The State Auditor 
shall have access to persons and records as a result of 
all contracts or grants entered into by State agencies or 
political subdivisions in accordance with N.C.G.S. 147- 
64.7. Additionally, as the State funding authority, the 
Agency and the Treasury, as the Federal funding 
authority, shall have access to persons and records as a 
result of all contracts or grants entered into by State 
agencies or political subdivisions. 

 
Record Retention: Records shall not be destroyed, 
purged or disposed of without the express written consent 
of the Agency. State basic records retention policy 
requires all grant records to be retained for a minimum of 
five years or until all audit exceptions have been resolved, 
whichever is longer. If the contract is subject to federal 
policy and regulations, record retention may be longer 
than five years since records must be retained for a period 
of three years following submission of the final Federal 
Financial Status Report, if applicable, or three years 
following the submission of a revised final Federal 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

NGO Form 0009B1 Grants General Terms and Conditions-Private Entities 
Eff. 9/2005 
Revised 7/2007, 7/2012 Page 13 of 14 

 

 

Financial Status Report. Also, if any litigation, claim, 
negotiation, audit, disallowance action, or other action 
involving this Contract has been started before expiration 
of the five-year retention period described above, the 
records must be retained until completion of the action 
and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the 
end of the regular five-year period described above, 
whichever is later. 

 
Miscellaneous 

 
Choice of Law: The validity of this Contract and any of 
its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of 
the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of 
North Carolina. The Grantee, by signing this Contract, 
agrees and submits, solely for matters concerning this 
Contract, to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of 
North Carolina and agrees, solely for such purpose, that 
the exclusive venue for any legal proceedings shall be 
Wake County, North Carolina. The place of this Contract 
and all transactions and agreements relating to it, and 
their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, North 
Carolina, where all matters, whether sounding in contract 
or tort, relating to the validity, construction, interpretation, 
and enforcement shall be determined. 

 
Amendment: This Contract may not be amended orally 
or by performance. Any amendment must be made in 
written form and executed by duly authorized 
representatives of the Agency and the Grantee. 

 
Severability: In the event that a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds that a provision or requirement of this 
Contract violates any applicable law, each such provision 
or requirement shall continue to be enforced to the extent 
it is not in violation of law or is not otherwise 
unenforceable and all other provisions and requirements 
of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Headings: The Section and Paragraph headings in these 
General Terms and Conditions are not material parts of 
the agreement and should not be used to construe the 
meaning thereof. 

Time of the Essence: Time is of the essence in the 
performance of this Contract. 

 
Certification Regarding Collection of Taxes: N.C.G.S. 
143-59.1 bars the Secretary of Administration from 
entering into contracts with vendors that meet one of the 
conditions of N.C.G.S. 105-164.8(b) and yet refuse to 
collect use taxes on sales of tangible personal property to 
purchasers in North Carolina. The conditions include: (a) 
maintenance of a retail establishment or office; (b) 
presence of representatives in the State that solicit sales 
or transact business on behalf of the vendor; and (c) 
systematic exploitation of the market by media-assisted, 
media-facilitated, or media-solicited means. The Grantee 
certifies that it and all of its affiliates (if any) collect all 
required taxes. 

 
Care of Property: The Grantee agrees that it shall be 
responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
property furnished to it for use in connection with the 
performance of this Contract and will reimburse the 
Agency for loss of, or damage to, such property. At the 
termination of this Contract, the Grantee shall contact the 
Agency for instructions as to the disposition of such 
property and shall comply with these instructions. 

 
Travel Expenses: Reimbursement to the Grantee for 
travel mileage, meals, lodging and other travel expenses 
incurred in the performance of this Contract shall be 
reasonable and supported by documentation. State rates 
should be used as guidelines. International travel shall not 
be reimbursed under this Contract. 

 
Sales/Use Tax Refunds: If eligible, the Grantee and all 
subgrantees shall: (a) ask the North Carolina Department 
of Revenue for a refund of all sales and use taxes paid by 
them in the performance of this Contract, pursuant to 
N.C.G.S. 105-164.14; and (b) exclude all refundable sales 
and use taxes from all reportable expenditures before the 
expenses are entered in their reimbursement reports. 

 
Advertising: The Grantee shall not use the award of this 
Contract as a part of any news release or commercial 
advertising. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 884F08B1-7B1F-4A4D-9CC8-4266FD21F3F0 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

The State of North Carolina must report into the FFATA Subaward Reporting System which captures and report subawards 
and executive compensation data regarding their first-tier subawards to meet the FFATA reporting requirements. 

 

« OBX Speedway » 

(Beneficiary) 

Enter your DUNS Number: 

029104395 

 
Enter your 9 Digit Zip Code:  27962-1007  

 
Question 1: In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization (the legal 
entity to which this specific CCR record, represented by a DUNS number, belongs) receive (1) 80 percent or more of your 
annual gross revenues in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements; 
and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, 
and/or cooperative agreements?   
 
NO 

 
 
 

Question 2: Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or 
organization (the legal entity to which this specific CCR record, represented by a DUNS number, belongs) through periodic 
reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986? 

 

NO 

Attachment D 
Federal Funding Accounting and Transparency Act (FFATA) 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-028 

SCRAP TIRES 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County is required to accept all scrap tires sold in the state after 

1994 in accordance with § 130A-309.58; and 
 

WHEREAS, County staff have made considerable efforts in reducing the costs associated 
with the scrap tire disposal program; and  
 

WHEREAS, despite the efforts of staff, the cost of the County’s scrap tire program has 
risen dramatically, especially for Tier 1, rural counties like Washington County which is located 
far from the relatively small number of available tire recycling centers in North Carolina which 
creates additional excessive hauling costs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the continued cost overruns of the program compared to tax revenue 
remitted to the County from the State has a negative impact on the financial position of the 
sanitation fund effectively creating an unfunded mandate on the County and its taxpayers; and  
 

WHEREAS, the continued negative impact of running this program may necessitate an 
increase in local landfill tipping fees and/or solid waste user fees solely to offset the extremely 
high and increasing costs of complying with such mandate; and 
 

WHEREAS, County staff sees no other realistically sustainable solution other than 
seeking an increase in the amount of funding for this program provided from the State; and 
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) 
consistently receives applications for more funds to cover scrap tire disposal costs than it can 
fulfill; and 
 

WHEREAS, such supplemental funding used to be available and provided by NCDEQ 
through grants to assist counties in need of financial assistance with the costs of complying 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

with the Scrap Tire Program mandates, but was substantially reduced under Session Law 2013-
360 which diverted 30% of the scrap tire tax revenues from Scrap Tire Program into the State 
general fund; and  
 

WHEREAS, (2021-2022) Senate Bill 529 amends GS 105-187.19 to require that 17% of 
the net proceeds of the Scrap Tire Disposal Tax be credited to the Scrap Tire Disposal 
Account, leaving 13% credited to the State general fund as opposed to the current 30%; and  
 

WHEREAS, the (2021-2022) Senate Bill 529 begins to partially address this issue by 
restoring some of the supplemental funding to NCDEQ to grant to County’s in need of 
additional financial assistance related to the costs of complying with the mandates of the Scrap 
Tire Program.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County hereby 
resolves as follows: 
 

1. That the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County is in strong support of 
legislation which helps to increase and restore sources of State funding to be used to 
help offset the extremely high and increasing costs to counties of complying with the 
current Scrap Tire Program mandates, including specifically but without limitation, (2021-
2022) SB 529. 

 
2. That the State legislature is hereby requested to: 

a. Continue monitoring the financial impact of § 130A-309.58, particularly on smaller 
Tier 1 counties with disproportionate hauling costs as a product of distance to 
currently available scrap tire disposal centers; 

 
b. Investigate ways to continue increasing state funding sources to reimburse counties 

for the increasing costs of complying with the Scrap Tire Program mandates; and 
 
 

c. Investigate methods to increase the level of competition in the scrap tire hauling 
business, including, but not limited to: deregulation and incentives for new entrants 
into the market.  

 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___. 
 
 
              __________________________________________ 
               Julius Walker, Jr., Vice-Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
      Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Recognition of Leadership Academy Participants, Mr. Curtis Potter, 

CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA will present certificates of completion to Jennifer O’Neal, 
EMS Director;  Missy Dixon, Dixon, Finance Officer; Doremus Luton, Public Utilities 
Director; Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy Director. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO: 6 

 

       DATE:     August 1, 2022 

 

ITEM:       Late Business Personal Property Listing and Application for Property 

Tax Exemption or Exclusion, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

  

  

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 

Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator will speak to the Board on the abovementioned 
documents from SunEnergy.  Please see the email below that she sent to the Clerk and County 
Manager along with the documentation. 
 
Please see attached.  
 
From Ms. Wilkins (to the Clerk for the Agenda Package): 
 
“I received a late business personal property listing and application for property tax 
exemption or exclusion.  The Commissioners will need to approve or deny the exemption 
request.  I included the listing because she referenced it in the letter she sent, it is for 
reference only.   I have attached the approval and the denial documents, whichever they 
do, the Board will need to sign off on it.   
 
I have copied the County Manager on this email because this will be a discovery tax 
bill.  Based on the Commissioners approving the exemption (and they should because the 
first exemption application we received, when the previous Tax Administrator was here, 
was denied and their lawyer contacted the Dept. of Revenue and it was decided it should 
have been approved).  The discovery bill will be based on a taxable value of $36,398,384 
(the depreciation for 2022 is 6% so 94% good). (193,608,426  x 94%) x 20% (taxable 
amount w/exemption) = $36,398,384.  Tax bill = $305,746.43 plus a 10% late penalty 
$30,574.64 for a total bill of $336,321.07.  The Watershed tax bill with penalty will be 
$4,003.82. 
 
I will not send the discovery bill until after the board has made their decision on the 
exemption – never assume.” 
  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  August 1, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:        Department Information Update: MTW Health Department, Mr. Wes 

Gray, Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department Director will speak to the Board on the 
County’s health department including a COVID update. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO: 6 
 
       DATE:     August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Late Business Personal Property Listing and Application for Property 

Tax Exemption or Exclusion, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator will speak to the Board on the abovementioned 
documents from SunEnergy.  Please see the email below that she sent to the Clerk and County 
Manager along with the documentation. 
 
Please see attached.  
 
From Ms. Wilkins (to the Clerk for the Agenda Package): 
 
“I received a late business personal property listing and application for property tax 
exemption or exclusion.  The Commissioners will need to approve or deny the exemption 
request.  I included the listing because she referenced it in the letter she sent, it is for 
reference only.   I have attached the approval and the denial documents, whichever they 
do, the Board will need to sign off on it.   
 
I have copied the County Manager on this email because this will be a discovery tax 
bill.  Based on the Commissioners approving the exemption (and they should because the 
first exemption application we received, when the previous Tax Administrator was here, 
was denied and their lawyer contacted the Dept. of Revenue and it was decided it should 
have been approved).  The discovery bill will be based on a taxable value of $36,398,384 
(the depreciation for 2022 is 6% so 94% good). (193,608,426  x 94%) x 20% (taxable 
amount w/exemption) = $36,398,384.  Tax bill = $305,746.43 plus a 10% late penalty 
$30,574.64 for a total bill of $336,321.07.  The Watershed tax bill with penalty will be 
$4,003.82. 
 
I will not send the discovery bill until after the board has made their decision on the 
exemption – never assume.” 
  













WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  

       
 (252) 793-1176 PHONE 
 (252) 793-2849 FAX 

 
 

 
 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Sherri Wilkins 
  Tax Administrator 
 
DATE:  July 26, 2022 
 
RE:  Approval or Denial of Late Application of Property Tax Exemption or Exclusion 
  Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC 
 
In regards to the late application from Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC, per North Carolina General 
Statute § 105-282.1 (a1), the board of county commissioners can approve a late application upon 
a showing of good cause by the applicant for failure to make a timely application.  Gretchen 
Sanchez, Controller of SunEnergy1 who submitted the Business Personal Property listing and the 
Application of Property Tax Exemption or Exclusion for Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC, stated 
“the application was missed due to our corporate relocation in late 2021.  Our corporate office is 
being relocated to Stamford, CT and while we have attempted to provide as smooth of a 
transition as possible, there have been some issues related to the move, delivery of mail and 
personnel changes.”.  If this application had been received during the listing period it would have 
been approved.  
 
Approved this 1st  day of August, 2022. 
 
 
             
      Julius Walker, Jr., Vice-Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 

 
 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
      Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  

       
 (252) 793-1176 PHONE 
 (252) 793-2849 FAX 

 
 

 
 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Sherri Wilkins 
  Tax Administrator 
 
DATE:  July 26, 2022 
 
RE:  Approval or Denial of Late Application of Property Tax Exemption or Exclusion 
  Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC 
 
In regards to the late application from Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC, per North Carolina General 
Statute § 105-282.1 (a1), the board of county commissioners can approve a late application upon 
a showing of good cause by the applicant for failure to make a timely application.  Gretchen 
Sanchez, Controller of SunEnergy1 who submitted the Business Personal Property listing and the 
Application of Property Tax Exemption or Exclusion for Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC, stated 
“the application was missed due to our corporate relocation in late 2021.  Our corporate office is 
being relocated to Stamford, CT and while we have attempted to provide as smooth of a 
transition as possible, there have been some issues related to the move, delivery of mail and 
personnel changes.”.  If this application had been received during the listing period it would have 
been approved.  
 
Denied this 1st  day of August, 2022. 
 
 
             
      Julius Walker, Jr., Vice-Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 

 
 



� �����������	�	��
������
������	��	������������������� !�"#$�%�&'�()*���+�'���,-�)�.���/�
01123455678983:39;:<86:=><5?@AB5@C5;99>D67<3=D78>DE71=D2F92=F1GD17HD=H=I21J98D722EJ671J9835

KLM�NOPLQRMST�UPV�SOSMWT�XQYMZ�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�\]PL�̂QZPSMVQ[R_�N[ZV�[̀VMR�[]S�aS[aMSVT�VOb�ZVOV]VMZ�aS[ZPSQcM�MbOPVWT�dLOV�ZL[]ŴLOaaMR�QR�O�XQYMR�ZQV]OVQ[R_KLMSM�OSM�O�̀Md�VOb�P[WWMPVQ[R�ZQV]OVQ[RZ�QR�dLQPL�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�LOYM�̀WMbQcQWQVTe�L[dMYMS_��f[RZQ̂MS�VLM�]R̀MVVMSM̂�O]VL[SQVT�[̀�VObP[WWMPV[SZ�V[�dOQYM�VLM�ghi�aMROWVT�̀[S�cÔ�PLMPjZ�kl_m_�ghnopnqr�[S�VLM�[aVQ[R�̀[S�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRV�c[OŜZ�V[�dOQYM�̂QZP[YMST�cQWWZ_�l_m_�ghnopgskjr_UR[VLMS�[̀�VLMZM�̂QZPSMVQ[ROST�ZQV]OVQ[RZ�QZ�VLM�V[aQP�[̀�V[̂OTtZ�cW[X�a[ZVu�̂MPQZQ[RZ�cT�X[YMSRQRX�c[OŜZ�V[�OWW[d�WOVM�MbM\aVQ[ROaaWQPOVQ[RZ�̀[S�vX[[̂�PO]ZM_w��l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOgr_��KLOV�ZVOV]VM�̂[MZ�R[V�̂M̀QRM�vX[[̂�PO]ZMwe�WMOYQRX�QV�]a�V[�W[POW�X[YMSR\MRVZ�V[M̂PQ̂M�̀[S�VLM\ZMWYMZ�dLOV�̀OPVZ�x]ZVQ̀T�WOVM�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ_�KLM�S]WMZ�P[RPMSRQRX�MbM\aVQ[R�OR̂�MbPW]ZQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�OSM�LOaaQWT�P[R̀QRM̂�V[�O�ZQRXWM�ZVOV]VMe�l_m_�ghnosqs_g_��ky[S�[]S�a]Sa[ZMZeVLM�VMS\Z�vMbM\aVQ[RZw�OR̂�vMbPW]ZQ[RZw�OSM�QRVMSPLORXMOcWM_��K[�jMMa�QV�ZQ\aWMe�ztWW�x]ZV�POWW�VLM\�OWW�vMbM\aVQ[RZ_wrU�aSMPQ[]Z�̀Md�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OSM�O]V[\OVQPe�\MORQRX�VLOV�VLM�VObaOTMS�QZ�MRVQVWM̂�V[�O�aS[aMSVT�VOb�cSMOj�dQVL[]V�VLM�RMM̂�V[�̀QWM�OROaaWQPOVQ[R�[S�VOjM�ORT�[VLMS�OPVQ[R_��KLMZM�vO]V[\OVQPw�MbM\aVQ[RZ�QRPW]̂M�X[YMSR\MRV�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_gre�QRYMRV[SQMZ�kl_m_�ghnos{nkpsOre�kppr�|�kp}re�OR̂e�Q\a[SVORVWTe�[]S�{noQRPL�̀WOVoZPSMMR�VMWMYQZQ[RZ�OR̂�f[OPL�~�c[ccWMLMÔ�P[WWMPVQ[RZ�kR[Roc]ZQRMZZ�aMSZ[ROWaS[aMSVTe�l_m_�ghnos{nkgnr_U�WOSXMS�R]\cMS�[̀�MbM\aVQ[RZ�SM�]QSM�[RWT�O�ZQRXWM�OaaWQPOVQ[R_���RPM�OaaS[YM̂e�VLM�MbM\aVQ[R�SM\OQRZ�QR�aWOPM�]RVQW�VLM�P[]RVT�WMOSRZ[̀�O�PLORXM�QR�VLM�aS[aMSVTtZ�]ZM�[S�[dRMSZLQa�[S�[VLMS�PSQVMSQ[R�̀[S�MWQXQcQWQVT_��m[\MVQ\MZ�VLOV�QR̀[S\OVQ[R�P[\MZ�Y[W]RVOSQWT�̀S[\�VLMVObaOTMSe�c]V�\[SM�[̀VMR�QV�P[\MZ�QR�VLM�̀[S\�[̀�O�̂QZP[YMST�\ÔM�cT�VLM�P[]RVT_KLM�WQZV�[̀�ZQRXWMoOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ�QRPW]̂M�SMWQXQ[]Z�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_pre�M̂]POVQ[ROW�aS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_}re�PLOSQVOcWMaS[aMSVT�kl_m_�ghnos{q_�re�SMZQ̂MRVQOW�aS[aMSVT�[dRM̂�cT�ZMRQ[SZ�dQVL�WQ\QVM̂�QRP[\MZ�kVLM�MŴMSWT�OR̂�̂QZOcWM̂�MbPW]ZQ[Re�l_m_�ghnos{{_gre�OR̂�O�P[]aWM�̂[�MR�\[SM_�bM\aVQ[RZ�VLOV�OSM�R[V�O]V[\OVQP�[S�ZQRXWMoOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OSMe�cT�̂M̀O]WVe�������oOaaWQPOVQ[R�MbM\aVQ[RZ_���bO\aWMZ�QRPW]̂M�VLMPQSP]QV�cSMOjMS�kl_m_�ghnos{{_g�r�OR̂�VLM�RMd�aS[YQZQ[RZ�P[YMSQRX�]RZ[Ŵ�Q\aS[YM\MRVZ�V[�SMZQ̂MRVQOW�OR̂�P[\\MSPQOW�aS[aMSVT�̂QZP]ZZM̂LMSM_N[ZV�MbM\aVQ[RZ�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�OSM�̂]M�cT�VLM�PW[ZM�[̀�VLM�WQZVQRX�aMSQ[̂e�dLQPL�MR̂Z��OR]OST�pg�OcZMRV�OR�MbVMRZQ[R�cT�VLM�P[]RVTP[\\QZZQ[RMSZ_�l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOr_���MZQ̂MRVQOW�aS[aMSVT�VOb�SMWQM̀�MbPW]ZQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�kPQSP]QV�cSMOjMSe�̂QZOcWM̂�YMVMSORZe�OR̂�MŴMSWT�|Q̂ZOcWM̂r�OSM�̂]M��]RM�g_�l_m_�ghnos{{_gkPr_�]V�VL[ZM�̂MÔWQRMZ�OSM�R[V�dSQVVMR�QR�ZV[RM_��l_m_�ghnosqs_gkOgr�ZVOVMZ�VLOV�v]a[R�O�ZL[dQRX�[̀�X[[̂�PO]ZM�cT�VLM�OaaWQPORV�̀[S�̀OQW]SM�V[\OjM�O�VQ\MWT�OaaWQPOVQ[Rw�VLM�X[YMSRQRX�c[OŜ�\OT�OPPMaV�WOVM�MbM\aVQ[R�OaaWQPOVQ[RZ�]a�V[�VLM�PW[ZM�[̀�VLM�POWMR̂OS�TMOS_
�92GFJ;01���?@@C�19��F=3=81��6099E�9���9�=F8I=81�71�10=��8J�=F3J1G�9���9F10��7F9EJ87:



����������	
	���
��
	����
����������

����
����	���������
�����������������
	����������
	������ !"�#�$% &' ()**+ #�,'!-.  /��� +!0&1&�&*1 #�1 2�3% 03*4 #*,1�% �* #*,1�%5  6*4! )*2!314!1�' 4�% #�**'! �* �##!7� (8 0*3)*�- *3 (8+&+19� :1*;- �' )**+ #�,'! 0*3 $��! �77$&#��&*1'5  <��!3' 4�% =! 4*3! '�3&#�5  >*2!314!1�' 4&)�� !2!1 =! �=$! �* �+*7� +&00!3!1�'��1+�3+' 0*3 +&00!3!1� �%7!' *0 ��"7�%!3'5  ?*44!3#&�$ ��"7�%!3' ;�* �3! !"7!#�!+ �* =! 4*3! �;�3! *0 ��! 0&1�1#&�$ *=$&)��&*1' *03,11&1) � =,'&1!'' 4&)�� =! �!$+ �* � 4*3! +!4�1+&1) +!0&1&�&*1 *0 ()**+ #�,'!- ���1 !$+!3$% 3!'&+!1�&�$ ��"7�%!3'@ 0*3 !"�47$!58 '�% (4&)��- =!#�,'! ;! ��2!19� 3!#!&2!+ 4,#� ),&+�1#! 03*4 ��! A3*7!3�% /�" ?*44&''&*1 *3 ��! '���! #*,3�' *1 ��&' �*7&#581 $��! BCDC �1+ !�3$% BCDD@ ��! A3*7!3�% /�" ?*44&''&*1 +!#&+!+ �;* '&4&$�3 �77!�$' &12*$2&1) #�,3#�!' ���� ��+ ',=4&��!+ !"!47�&*1�77$&#��&*1' �0�!3 E!#!4=!3 FD 0*3 ��! ��" %!�3 &1 G,!'�&*15  6,373&'&1)$%@ ��! A/? *3+!3!+ ��! #*,1�% �* �##!7� ��!'! 2!3% $��!�77$&#��&*1'5  /�! A/? �77�3!1�$% +!#&+!+ ���� ��! #�,3#�!' ��+ )**+ #�,'! 0*3 ��!&3 $��! �77$&#��&*1' =!#�,'! ��!% 1!2!3 3!#!&2!+ ��"=&$$' 0*3 ��! +&'7,�!+ 73*7!3�%5  H�+ ��! #�,3#�!' =!!1 =&$$!+ 73*7!3$%@ ��! A/? 3!�'*1!+@ ��!% ;*,$+ ��2! 3!4!4=!3!+ �* ',=4&� ��!�77$&#��&*1 73&*3 �* ��! #$*'! *0 ��! %!�35I' 8 ;3*�! &1 ��&' =$*) 7*'�@ 8 '�3*1)$% +&'�)3!! ;&�� ��!'! A/? +!#&'&*1'5  /�! E!#!4=!3 FD +!�+$&1! #3!��!+ =% >565 DCJKBLB5D &'�='*$,�! 3!)�3+$!'' *0 ;�!��!3 ��! ��"7�%!3 4&)�� ��2! ��+ )**+ #�,'! 0*3 ��! $��! �77$&#��&*1581 � BCDB #�'! &12*$2&1) ��! 4,$�&K4&$$&*1K+*$$�3 M*3�� ?�3*$&1� N!'!�3#� ?�47,' &1 O�11�7*$&'@ ��! '���! #*,3� *0 �77!�$' 0*,1+ ��!#*,1�%9' 3!P!#�&*1 *0 � $��! �77$&#��&*1 �* =! �3=&�3�3% �1+ #�73&#&*,' &1 7�3� =!#�,'! ���� +!#&'&*1 ;�' =�'!+ $�3)!$% *1 ��! �4*,1� *0 ��"+*$$�3' &47$&#��!+ =% ��! 7*�!1�&�$ !"!47�&*15  QG,�$$% �3*,=$&1) &1 ��! #*,3�9' !%!' ;�' ��! 0�#� ���� ��! #*,1�% ;�' ;!$$ �;�3! *0 ��!��"7�%!39' !"!47� '���,' �0�!3 ��! �;* 7�3�&!' ��+ ;*3:!+ #$*'!$% *1 ��! #3!��&*1 *0 � ,1&G,! ��"K&1#3!4!1� 0&1�1#&1) +!�$5 N!�+ 4*3!�=*,� ��&' #�'! �!3!5I++ �* ��&' '�*3� $&'� *0 ()**+ #�,'!- +!#&'&*1' �;* 3!#!1� A/? 3,$&1)' &12*$2&1) '*$�3 0�34'5  R*�� 81 3!S E> 6*$�3 T!''!!@ TT? �1+ 813!S N*#: 6*$�3 Q1!3)% A$�1� TT? &12*$2!+ �77!�$' =% ��"7�%!3' ;�* ��+ $��! �77$&#��&*1' 0*3 ��! '*$�3 !1!3)% !$!#�3&#&�% 73*7!3�%!"#$,'&*1 U>565 DCJKBVJUWJXX +!1&!+ =% ��!&3 3!'7!#�&2! #*,1�&!'5/�! ��"7�%!3'9 *1$% �3),4!1�' &1 ',77*3� *0 ()**+ #�,'!- 0*3 ��!&3 ��3+&1!'' ;!3!@ (�! +&+19� :1*; ;! ��+ �* 0&$! �77$&#��&*1'Y- �1+(<��!3 #*,1�&!' ��2! �##!7�!+ $��! �77$&#��&*1'5-  I' ��! A/? #*33!#�$% 7*&1�!+ *,�@ ��*'! �;* �3),4!1�' �3! &1�!3!1�$% #*1�3�+&#�*3%5  80%*, 0*,)�� 0*3 �1+ 3!#!&2!+ 7!34&''&*1 �* 0&$! $��! !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' &1 *��!3 #*,1�&!'@ %*, *=2&*,'$% ;!3! �;�3! *0 ��! �77$&#��&*13!G,&3!4!1�5  /�! A/? 3!P!#�!+ ��! ��"7�%!3'9 �77!�$' �1+ ,7�!$+ ��! #*,1�&!'9 +!#&'&*1 �* 3!P!#� ��! $��! �77$&#��&*1'5��&$! 8 �)3!! ;&�� ��! 3!',$�@ 8 ��&1: ��! A/? 4&''!+ � 4*3! 0,1+�4!1��$ 7*&1�5  81 *1! *0 ��! �77!�$'@ ��! ��"7�%!3 ',=4&��!+ &�'!"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1 0*3 ��" %!�3 BCDF &1 Z�% BCDW5  /�! �='*$,�! +!�+$&1! 0*3 BCDF !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' ;�' E!#!4=!3 FD@ BCDF@4!�1&1) ���� ��! Z�% BCDW �77$&#��&*1 '�*,$+ ��2! =!!1 3!P!#�!+ 0*3 BCDF ��"!' ;&��*,� ��! 1!!+ �* #*1'&+!3 )**+ #�,'!5  I' &1 ��!#�,3#� �77!�$' 4!1�&*1!+ �=*2!@ ��! A/? #*1�&1,!' �* &)1*3! *3 4&'3!�+ ��! !"7$&#&� '���,�*3% 3!G,&3!4!1� ���� !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1' =!0&$!+ =% ��! !1+ *0 ��! #�$!1+�3 %!�35N!�+ �*)!��!3@ ;��� ),&+�1#! +* ��!'! �77!$$��! +!#&'&*1' )&2! #*,1�&!' ;�!1 ��!% &1�!373!� ��! ()**+ #�,'!- '��1+�3+ &1 >565 DCJKBLB5D.  M*� 4,#�@ 3!�$$%5  H!3! �3! ��! =!'� $!''*1' 8 #�1 )$!�1 03*4 ��!'! #�'!'SD5 E*19� =�'! ��! +!0&1&�&*1 *0 ()**+ #�,'!- *1 ��! �4*,1� *0 ��" +*$$�3' &12*$2!+ ;&�� ��! 7*�!1�&�$ !"#$,'&*15 /�!'*7�&'�&#��&*1 *0 ��! ��"7�%!3 U)$*=�$ #*37*3��&*1 2'5 !$+!3$% �*4!*;1!3X 4&)�� =! � 3!�'*1�=$! =�'&' 0*3 �77$%&1)+&00!3!1� ()**+ #�,'!- 3!G,&3!4!1�' �* +&00!3!1� #�'!'5  R,� ��! =�3 0*3 $��! �77$&#��&*1' '�*,$+ 1*� =! '!� �&)�!3'&47$% =!#�,'! ��! 3!G,!'�!+ !"!47�&*1 &12*$2!' � $*� *0 4*1!%5B5 8�9' 0&1! �* 3!P!#� $��! �77$&#��&*1' &0 ��! =!'� �3),4!1� ��! ��"7�%!3 *00!3' &'@ (8 +&+19� :1*; 8 ��+ �* 0&$! �1�77$&#��&*15- /�&' &' !'7!#&�$$% �3,! 0*3 #*44!3#&�$ ��"7�%!3' ;�* 0�#! '&4&$�3 !"!47�&*1 G,!'�&*1' &1 4,$�&7$!#*,1�&!'5F5 <1! #*,1�% 1!!+ 1*� 3!�#� ��! '�4! +!#&'&*1 �' +&+ �1*��!3 #*,1�% *1 � '&4&$�3 !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*1 03*4 � '&4&$�3U*3 ��! '�4!X ��"7�%!35W5 ��&$! ��! 0�&$,3! �* 3!#!&2! � ��" =&$$ &' 1*� �1 !"#,'! �* �2*&+ 7�%&1) ��"!' U'!! ��&' =$*) 7*'�X@ &� 4&)�� =! �1�##!7��=$! !"#,'! 0*3 � $��! !"!47�&*1 �77$&#��&*15J5 R! #*1'&'�!1�5 80 ��! #*,1�% 3*,�&1!$% �##!7�' �$$ $��! �77$&#��&*1'@ &� 4�% =! �*,)� 0*3 ��! #*,1�% �* P,'�&0% � ',++!1';&�#� �* � 4*3! '�3&#� +!0&1&�&*1 *0 )**+ #�,'!5  8+!�$$%@ ��! =*�3+ '�*,$+ +!2!$*7 � ;3&��!1 7*$&#% *1 �*; &� +!0&1!')**+ #�,'! &1 ��!'! '&�,��&*1' �1+ ��!1 �77$% ���� 7*$&#% &1 �$$ �77!�$'5 I ;3&��!1 7*$&#% ;&$$ =! !'7!#&�$$% &47*3��1�&0 %*,3 #*,1�% ��' =!!1 $!1&!1� *1 $��! �77$&#��&*1' &1 ��! 7�'� =,� ;&'�!' �* �77$% � 4*3! +!4�1+&1) '��1+�3+ )*&1)0*3;�3+5  I+*7�&1) � ;3&��!1 7*$&#% +!'#3&=&1) ��! =*�3+9' 1!; ,1+!3'��1+&1) *0 ()**+ #�,'!- U�1+ �77$%&1) ����1!; 7*$&#% #*1'&'�!1�$% )*&1) 0*3;�3+X ;&$$ �!$7 73*�!#� ��! #*,1�%9' +!#&'&*1' *1 �77!�$ �* ��! A/? *3 ��! '���!#*,3�'5

�� � � �

[
������� \ ���� �
 ]����	� ̂��

� 
_ ̀
a��	��	� �� ��� b	�a������ 
_ c
��� [��
��	��



���������	��
	
��
�
����	��������	���	������	�
��������	�
�������
������
��������������
���
����������
		��		�
	�������
�
	��������
���
���������	
����	��������	���	�����
�����������������������������	
����������
��	
���������	
������	
	����������
���		������������������������
���
��������	�	����

��	
�������	��������	����������
�����������	
	��	��������
�
��������	
��������
�
�������������������������
���
��������������	����
�	
���	�����
������� 	��
�	��
�������
	��
���

����������������
�!���	���
��������������
���
����"!#�$$$%�&����'����
�	�!����������("�"���
��)�����"���
��)�����("�*+,--'$$$%.�
'�����	��
	/	��
���

��.��
�
����
�-0-
-11
200-.������3�-0-
-1*
*+%+


����	455�����	
	��
���

��5*%0,5%-5����'���	
'���'���
'����
���'��3'
3
������'�����������	56789�:;<;=�>?8@?=A�@B;�CD?@<7=E�F?G=@9�@7H�7EIJ=JK@87@?8A�LGK@�KB78;E�MJ@B�I;�B;8�D?G=@9NK�<7@;�7OO<JD7@J?=�O?<JD9A�MBJDB�P�<JQ;�7�<?@R�6KR�>?8@?=�8;O?8@K�@B7@�@B;�O?<JD9�B7K�S;;=�J=�O<7D;�KJ=D;�;78<9�TUVW�7=E�B7K�M?8Q;E�M;<<�K?�X78R��:;8;�JK�7�<JYB@<9�;EJ@;E�Z;8KJ?=�?XCD?@<7=E�F?G=@9NK�O?<JD9[\]̂_̀_]a�b]�cd]b]e�f̀cf_̀ag�bh�â_�cijbekabc]�cl�f̀cf_̀ag�cd]_̀h�ac�m]n_̀hak]n�â_b̀�̀bêah�k]n�cijbekabc]h�b]ojmnb]e�fkgb]e�akp_hk]n�kffjgb]e�lc̀�kjj�_pojmhbc]�k]n�_p_qfabc]h�l̀cq�f̀cf_̀ag�akp_h�b]�k�abq_jg�qk]]_̀r��sbâ�âka�f̀b]obfj_�b]�qb]ntakpfkg_̀�]_ej_oa�c̀�cu_̀hbêa�dbjj�]ca�oc]habama_�veccn�okmh_w�lc̀�k�jka_�_p_qfabc]�c̀�_pojmhbc]�kffjbokabc]rxccn�okmh_�lc̀�oc]hbn_̀b]e�k�jka_�kffjbokabc]�qkg�b]ojmn_�hbamkabc]h�b]�d̂ bôyẑ_�akpfkg_̀�dkh�ebu_]�b]oc̀ _̀oa�b]lc̀qkabc]�b]�d̀bab]e�̀_ek̀nb]e�â_�qkaa_̀�l̀cq�â_�akp�cllbo_�c̀�â_{r|r�}_fk̀aq_]a�cl�~_u_]m_�ẑ_�akpfkg_̀�h�̀_�m_ha�dcmjn�̂ku_�i__]�abq_jg�ima�lc̀�â_�jka_�n_jbu_̀g�c̀�lkbjm̀_�ac�n_jbu_̀�ig�����t���t��_n�pt�_aor��k]ntẑ_�akpfkg_̀�dkh�b]ocqf_a_]a�c̀�b]okfkobaka_n�c̀�n_fjcg_n�b]�qbjbak̀g�h_̀ubo_�cma�cl�â_�ocm]àg�nm̀b]eâ_�f_̀bcn�b]�d̂ bô�â_�kffjbokabc]�ĥcmjn�̂ku_�i__]�hmiqbaa_nr����ẑ_�im̀n_]�cl�f̀cub]e�icâ�eccn�okmh_�lc̀�â_�jka_�kffjbokabc]�k]n�_jbebibjbag�lc̀�â_�̀_�m_ha_n�_p_qfabc]�c̀�_pojmhbc]�lkjjh�c]�â_akpfkg_̀r��PNE�<?Z;�@?�B;78�B?M�9?G8�D?G=@9�J=@;8O8;@K�@B;�Y??E�D7GK;�K@7=E78E�J=��RCR�VU��T�TRVR��?;K�9?G8�S?78E�7<M79K�7DD;O@�<7@;�7OO<JD7@J?=K�>;Z;8����K;�@B;�D?II;=@�K;D@J?=�S;<?M�@?�KB78;�9?G8�;HO;8J;=D;�MJ@B�?G8�8;7E;8KR

�� � - �

"�����������*%%-������
	
����������������
���
��������
�����
�	�������(�����"�������




 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  August 1, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Coastal Resources Advisory County (CRAC) 
 
We received the email and attachments from the Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) 
seeking nominees to the Coastal Resources Advisory County (CRAC). The Board is 
being ask to bring possible names of nominees to the Board meeting for discussion. 
 
“From: Owens, Charlan <charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, July 7, 2022 7:42 AM 
 
Subject: Coastal Resources Advisory Council Appointments - 2nd Solicitation 
 
Hello everyone, 
 
This email is being sent to local government managers in the Division of Coastal 
Management’s northern area. 
 
The Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) is seeking nominees to the Coastal Resources 
Advisory Council (CRAC).  See ATTACHMENTS and email below for details. 
 
Nominations are due by August 5, 2022.   
 
******************************* 
The N.C. Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) has been seeking nominations for the 
Coastal Resources Advisory Council (CRAC), which works with the CRC to balance and 
foster the protection and wise development of the State’s coastal resources through both 
planning and regulation under the NC Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA).  There 

mailto:charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov


are six open seats on the CRAC, which the Commission would like to fill.  The 
Commission is therefore welcoming additional nominations from local governments to 
fill these remaining seats. 
 
ABC Board 
 
The ABC Board has requested that the Board re-appoint Mr. Tim Spear for a 3-year term. 
The ABC Board is very pleased with his leadership, knowledge and overall performance.   
 
Mr. Spear has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
 
 



 

   
 
 
ROY COOPER 
GOVERNOR 
 
 
 
M. RENEE CAHOON 
CHAIR 
 
LARRY BALDWIN 
VICE - CHAIR 
 
NEAL ANDREW 
 
CRAIG BROMBY 
 
TRACE COOPER 
 
ROBERT EMORY 
 
ROBERT HIGH 
 
SHEILA HOLMAN 
 
DOUG MEDLIN 
 
JOHN P NORRIS 
 
LAUREN SALTER 
 
ALEXANDER TUNNELL 
 
ANGIE WILLS 
 
 
 
BRAXTON C. DAVIS 
Executive Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                
 

                                            
Division of Coastal Management 

Department of Environmental Quality 
400 Commerce Ave., Morehead City, North Carolina 28557 

Phone 252-515-5400     

North Carolina Coastal Resources Commission 

 

       July 6, 2022 
 
Dear Coastal Local government, 
 
The N.C. Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) has been seeking nominations for the 
Coastal Resources Advisory Council (CRAC), which works with the CRC to balance 
and foster the protection and wise development of the State’s coastal resources 
through both planning and regulation under the NC Coastal Area Management Act 
(CAMA).  There are six open seats on the CRAC, which the Commission would like 
to fill.  The Commission is therefore welcoming additional nominations from local 
governments to fill these remaining seats. 
 
The CRAC, which was established by CAMA, consists of 20 members appointed by 
the CRC. Counties and cities in the coastal area may nominate candidates for 
consideration by the CRC. Members may be reappointed at the discretion of the CRC, 
provided that one-half of the membership at the beginning of any two-year term are 
residents of counties in the coastal area. The CRAC Chair and Vice-Chair are elected 
annually by the CRAC members. 
 
The CRC is seeking CRAC nominees comprised of local government representatives, 
or individuals recommended by local governments.  While many of their recent policy 
initiatives have focused on rules and polices affecting oceanfront development, the 
CRC is interested in a balanced membership on the CRAC of both oceanfront and 
inner banks/coastal plain representatives. With this in mind, we encourage your 
political body to provide a nomination for the CRAC for consideration by the CRC.   
 
Please send your nominations for CRAC membership (including resume or supporting 
documentation) by email to Angela.Willis@ncdenr.gov, or by mail to NC Division of 
Coastal Management, 400 Commerce Ave., Morehead City, NC 28557 by August 5, 
2022. If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not 
hesitate to contact Mike Lopazanski, DCM Deputy Director, at 252-515-5431; 
mike.lopazanski@ncdenr.gov. Thank you for your consideration of this 
correspondence and we look forward to any response you may provide. 
 
 
     Renee Cahoon, Chair 

 
     Coastal Resources Commission 

mailto:Angela.Willis@ncdenr.gov
mailto:mike.lopazanski@ncdenr.gov


NC Coastal Area Management Act 
Coastal Resources Advisory Council 

§ 113A-105.  Coastal Resources Advisory Council. 

(a)        Creation. - There is hereby created and established a council to be known as the 
Coastal Resources Advisory Council. 

(b)        Membership and Terms. - The Coastal Resources Advisory Council shall consist of not 
more than 20 members appointed or designated by the Coastal Resources Commission. 
Counties and cities in the coastal area may nominate candidates for consideration by the 
Commission. The terms of all Council members serving on the Council on January 1, 2013, 
shall expire on July 31, 2013. A new Council shall be appointed in the manner provided by this 
subsection with terms beginning on August 1, 2013, and expiring on June 30, 2015. Members 
may be reappointed at the discretion of the Commission, provided that one-half of the 
membership at the beginning of any two-year term are residents of counties in the coastal area. 

(c)        Functions and Duties. - The Advisory Council shall assist the Secretary and the 
Secretary of Administration in an advisory capacity: 

(1)        On matters which may be submitted to it by either of them or by the Commission, 
including technical questions relating to the development of rules, and 

(2)        On such other matters arising under this Article as the Council considers appropriate. 

(d)       Multiple Offices. - Membership on the Coastal Resources Advisory Council is hereby 
declared to be an office that may be held concurrently with other elective or appointive offices 
(except the office of Commission member) in addition to the maximum number of offices 
permitted to be held by one person under G.S. 128-1.1. 

(e)        Chairman and Vice-Chairman. - A chairman and vice-chairman shall be elected annually 
by the Council. 

(f)        Compensation. - The members of the Advisory Council who are not State employees 
shall receive per diem and necessary travel and subsistence expenses in accordance with the 
provisions of G.S. 138-5.  (1973, c. 1284, s. 1; 1975, c. 452, s. 5; 1977, c. 771, s. 4; 1981, c. 
932, s. 2.1; 1983, c. 249, ss. 1, 2; 1989, c. 727, s. 127; c. 751, s. 8(14a); 1991 (Reg. Sess., 
1992), c. 959, s. 26; 1995, c. 123, s. 4; c. 504, s. 7; 2013-360, s. 14.25.) 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. The Finance Report is also 
attached. 
 
 
 
 























































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from July 2022—see attachment 

 
 Statistics Reports from July 2022—see attachment 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
August 1, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
(Will submit first report next month.) 
 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:   
The EMS Division has one Full Time Paramedic position available.  The Transport Division has 
one Full Time EMT position available. We are also accepting applications for part time 
positions.  
  
EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 
PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 30 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units. We are 
seeing an increase in patients with COVID-like illnesses. 
   
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
UNC PECC+ Program : Paramedic/PECC Coordinator Jessica Howery and Director O’Neal 
completed Pediatric Disaster Response and Emergency Preparedness presented by Texas A&M 
Engineering Extension Service (TEEX)   
  
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:   The formal data collection for the trial started on July 1.  
We met with representatives from Duke and our stakeholders to discuss our county specific plan.  
We also discussed a strategy to get our 911 communications center trained and in the CARES 
registry Dispatch module.  
 
All of our Paramedics also recently completed their annual review/training requirements to 
maintain our Drug Assisted Airway-Intubation program. This procedure allows us to use 
medications to sedate and paralyze the respirations of a critical patient to allow for placing of a 
secure airway.  Some examples of patients requiring this life-saving technique include traumatic 
brain injury patients who have become agitated/combative/confused due to the injury, COPD 
(Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease) patients who are reaching respiratory failure, and 
victims of burns to their airway.  This skill is not one we use frequently, so annual reviews and 
practice is very important.  Our Paramedics also have to meet standardized criteria and be 
approved individually by our Medical Director, Dr. Lowry.  



 
 

 

 
The Eastern 4-H Center has been hosting Hero Days.  These camps host children from military 
families and give First Responders the opportunity to assist in this special program by sharing 
our stories and contribution to the community.  The kids also get to see our ambulance and learn 
how to use some of the equipment we carry.  See the pictures below taken at Hero Day for Camp 
Corral.  We are also very excited to be attending Hero Day for Operation Purple Camp 
sponsored by the National Military Families Association.  
 

 



 
 

 

 
Washington-Tyrrell County EMS also hosted the quarterly NEREMSA (NorthEastern Regional 
EMS Administrators) in person with a virtual option.  NEREMSA is made up of members from 
the following counties: Bertie, Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hertford, Hyde, 
Martin, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington Counties. These meetings are also 
attended by representatives of the NC Office of EMS, with the purpose of promoting the 
continued development and enhancement of the delivery of EMS systems in our region. Thank 
you to Commissioner Ann Keyes for stopping by to open our meeting with a Welcome to 
Washington County.  
 



 
 

 

 
Washington-Tyrrell County EMS is partnering with Agape Health Services to facilitate a vaccine 
clinic event at St. John Missionary Baptist Church in Columbia on Saturday July 30th from 
10am-2pm. Vaccines will be available for adults and children between 5-11 years of age. Tell a 
friend!  
 
Looking forward to another successful FY of providing The best care to our citizens and visitors.  
Thank you for your continued support of the Washington-Tyrrell County EMS System.  Also, 
Chair Johnson will be in our prayers for a quick recovery.                                                 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
On June 17-18-19 the 10u and 14u traveled to Raleigh to play in our state tournament. 

The 10 under did an awesome job for the first time competing in a state tournament. They won 
everything until the play in championship games. They came in 3rd place and received bronze 
medals.   

 



 
 

 

The 14 and under did an awesome job as well.  They came in first place and they received gold 
medals as well in the champions games.  Our teams represented Washington Co Recreation very 
good. 

The 18 under traveled back to Raleigh on June 24-26th to participate in H.S. State Games 
Tournament.  Our head coach David Lewis was able to get a sponsor for the 18 under to 
participate in this tournament. Without this sponsor they wouldn't have been able to participate 
and we say thank you.  

They came in first place and brought back the gold. We are very blessed and have a lot of talent 
in Washington Co. Especially Washington Co Recreation this is where they learn the 
fundamentals of the sports and they excel in other capacity as well their academics.   

We are now signing up for football and if it is God’s will we will excel in that to. 

 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
No report submitted. 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

Operating under new budget – appreciate Administration and Commissioners 
1. 17 Permits issued 
2. 4 plan reviews 
3. 2 map reviews 
4. 23 Inspections completed 
5. Discussion with homeowner regarding setbacks – built over property line 
6. Discussion of zoning for two out of state potential property buyers 
7. 4 Flood Zone requests for information 
8. Sent letter to Creswell town hall for inclusion in water bills for CRS notification 
9. Worked with Community Rating System auditor – she has approved packages 

submitted for Creswell, Roper; and Plymouth which were prepared by CFM Pittman 
with help from Mayors and Clerks from the municipalities. Washington County’s 
project was submitted and received; it has not been reviewed.  Next year will be a site 
visit. 

10. Office staff worked with Emergency Management on WEB EOC (20th); Debris 
Management Exercise (12th); Sheltering WebEx (19th); and Public Safety Team 
meeting (25th) 

11. Continuing with committee work with regional housing resiliency and equity  
12. Army Corps of Engineers Webinar for public comment on rule-making regarding 

their planning process for wetlands reassignment (18th)  
13. Virtual FRN to modernize civil works - environmental justice (26th) 

 



 
 

 

Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 

Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 

Solid Waste 
 

The landfill took in 60.48 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 5.72 Tons of Inert Debris, 
0.71 Tons of Scrap Metal,   73.16 Tons of Construction Debris and 12.00 tons of Scrap 
Tires this month. 

 
Water Department 

 
Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 13.3 (MG). The average daily usage 
was .443 MG. We served 2653 accounts, billing customers for 8956 (MG) of water. 
 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
Detention:  
 

 
No report submitted from Sheriff’s Office or E911 



 
 

 

Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Multiple conversations with Motorola and 911 Board concerning the discovery that  
Motorola made during cutover and testing of new radios. New radios have a compatibility 

2. issue with the outdated fire radio maintained by Woodley’s Sales in Creswell. Contacted  
Lance Swindell to update him. Currently waiting for proposal/quote from Motorola 
to correct issue. Meantime, Motorola will install temporary solution so new radios can be 
used. 

3. Discussions with Edmunds on location of backups and archive folder. Create new 
connection to access archive data. 

4. Install driver for Sheriff office printer on all CAD workstations so reports can be printed  
directly to Sheriff’s office. 

5. Research options for internet connection at new Elections office. Meet with Dora and Mary 
to discuss needs. Visit Roper site to document. 

6. Work with Clinta to resolve issues with passwords. 
7. Troubleshoot issue with 911 internet pc connection. 
8. Setup and create profiles for new laptops in Co Manager’s office. 
9. Attend AOC Wireless Expansion meeting. 
10. Download new Watchguard vpn on client computers outside network test for connectivity. 
11. Setup Mary Moscato’s computer to work from Airport. 
12. Work on old computer equipment that can be destroyed. Document for Finance records. 
13. Work on issue with 911 Board FY20 Expenditure Statement. 
14. Setup new employee on computer at Senior Center. 
15. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
16. Attend Departmental meeting. 
17. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
18. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
19. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Price of gas, jet fuel costs continue to hurt the business travel and the general aviation 
sector.  

2. Replaced 1 runway light. 
3. I’m losing ground with trying to keep up with cutting grass. 

 
4. Outside Credit Card unit on pedestal working for Av/Gas, will not pump Jet/A. The 

Credit Card side of the FMU will take Credit Card properly, go thru all process, tells you 
to turn on pump, but when you turn on pump it will not start/run. Called Fuel Master and 



 
 

 

went thru voltage test with Fuel Master and they determined that relay for Jet/A pump 
was bad (relay for Av/Gas was ok) and they would ship new relay board on Friday (I can 
pump Jet/A manually) 

5. Future Projects:                                                 
 
 Ordered PTO shaft for woods 3240 mower.  
  Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.     
 Find someone to contract installing sump pumps on Av/gas tank and sump pump on 

Jet/A fuel tank.                                                                                                                                                                           
 Have sump pumps for the av/gas and jet fuel tanks. Will have to get piping for each 

tank to be able to install sump pumps. 
 
 Avgas reel motor not working. Have to fine problem so can fix it.             
 Jet reel motor stopped working also. Have to find problem, fix it.       
 Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway lights, and fixtures that has sunken in or 

washed away to meet FAA safety standards.  
 
 Runway: Need to put weed killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.     
 Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport.                                
 Need to cut around runway and taxiway lights.  
 Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA 

safety standards.  
 Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear on 

airport equipment.                                                              
 
 Repair Beacon                                                                                                         
 Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)          
 Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                            
 Have to replace drive shaft and u-joints on wood’s 3240 mower.              
 Replace underground phone line to FMU at refueling station.        
 
And other items that are not on this list. 

 
 
Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Moved Board of Elections office from CMO building to Roper Annex. 
2. Moved Mary Moscato from CMO building to Airport. 
3. Moved all old equipment that was damaged to the landfill or to the dumpster. 
4. Cutting grass, trimming, edging around some of the County buildings. 
5. Installed light fixtures, light bulbs, ballasts, light switches, receptacles, flush valves and 

handles, water faucets, commodes. 
6. Put furniture together, clean out drain lines, finish painting at Roper Annex. 
7. Sweeping, moping, vacuum, empty trash, wash windows, dusting, cleaning and 

disinfecting the buildings they clean.  
 
 



 
 

 

MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 
None to report. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 31 30 44 44 48 40 44 54 31 181 656 656
Male 41 37 19 19 35 32 35 24 21 32 21 27 343
Female 7 1 9 7 5 9 10 15 11 7 5 4 90
Male 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 3 3 4 4 3 3 1 12 15 5 150 206 206
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

433

2

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

SMCP

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

96%

1%0%0%0%0%3%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 172 149 160 155 112 123 127 135 154 1735
WC Transported 90 122 109 120 102 113 115 78 89 80 110 118 1246
WC Refusals 39 43 45 52 47 47 40 34 34 47 23 36 487

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 3 2 0 4 4 2 4 0 2 25
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 87 95 84 73 88 81 123 117 104 1066
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 7 5 12 6 10 10 13 16 16 139
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 3 5 6 4 1 6 4 2 10 62

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 53 48 44 44 39 39 48 47 44 589
TC Transported 43 48 42 38 35 33 34 22 30 36 33 33 427
TC Refusals 19 17 14 15 13 11 10 17 9 12 14 11 162

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 7
HC Transported 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 6
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

27%

10%

13%

9%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   2,726.40$   1,225.00$   925.00$       2,115.00$   4,280.00$   3,010.20$   2,305.40$   1,313.92$   2,818.00$         $39,117.42
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       75.00$         25.00$         25.00$         150.00$       275.00$       125.00$       -$             100.00$      $1,100.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       375.00$       425.00$       75.00$         275.00$       300.00$       300.00$       300.00$       675.00$       150.00$      $3,300.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             275.00$       275.00$       -$             225.00$       -$             -$            $900.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         -$             -$             -$            $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $3,176.40 $1,650.00 $1,025.00 $2,690.00 $5,005.00 $3,585.20 $2,955.40 $1,988.92 $3,068.00 $44,437.42

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

88%

3%
7% 2%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 489 608 0 0 0 440 0 0 0 0 2491
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 65 47 50 264
New Particpants 2 5 1 8
Center-Sponsored Events 100 212 255 109 676
Special Events 15 212 25 82 25 359
Caregiver's Support Group 5 4 4 4 17
Exercise Room 24 50 30 54 24 182
Dance Fitness 10 9 19
Yoga 32 20 10 32 32 126
Chair Exercise 90 114 54 54 57 369
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 35 30 35 176
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 18 20 24 119
Craft Room 40 36 30 30 136
Drop-in Activities 40 40
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1399 1391 1466 1085 817 920 975 0 0 0 0 9271
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 402 502 157 99 138 152 2145
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 998 989 964 928 718 782 823 7126
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 179 272 252 323 334 247 248 274

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    147.00$   150.00$  -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  489.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     115.00$    90.00$     355.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     32.00$      60.00$     134.00$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

30%

16%

1%8%1%
6%

17%

8%

0%
5%

6% 2%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 1051 898 988 1121 928 892 908 889 1316 1275 11938
Law Enforcement 655 640 820 683 780 880 703 705 728 723 1057 949 9323

Animal Control 54 64 53 59 159 64 46 66 41 41 103 129 879
EMS 109 150 178 156 49 177 179 121 139 125 156 197 1736

Reported Incidents 85 38 48 42 48 55 58 35 57 38 60 28 592
Total Arrests 23 5 17 8 10 18 14 11 20 10 22 7 165

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 8 6 8 11 8 8 7 4 7 4 75
Felony Arrests 20 4 9 2 2 7 6 3 13 6 15 3 90

Total Papers Served 24 37 48 37 43 50 32 35 57 34 45 54 496
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 2 5 8 5 0 15 3 5 7 58

Civil Papers Served 24 31 46 35 38 42 27 35 42 31 40 47 438
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 3 15 3 14 12 15 46 25 15 14 203
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 0 2 1 1 1 4 3 4 0 19

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 3 13 2 13 12 14 22 22 11 14 164
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 18 26 15 16 15 52 35 28 25 265
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 38 0 12 11 7 0 121

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 21 8 20 15 46 35 28 17 24 32 298

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

78%

7%

15%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

YTD TOTALS

592

75 90
58

438

19

164

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      220,137.75$  319,977.93$  1,607,792.25$  569,027.17$      152,638.26$  131,947.77$  146,411.12$  30,913.51$   26,466.77$      7,200,169.68$                    
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  (63,261.74)$                        
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             371.79$         332.08$         1,544.52$          278.18$             1,277.39$      298.08$         224.79$         82.54$           34.90$              7,540.44$                           
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   178.95$         -$               6.05$                 2,745.57$          4,446.69$      5,393.56$      7,432.04$      2,267.29$      1,693.89$        24,164.04$                         
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        2,471.93$      3,646.45$      18,834.89$        6,870.42$          1,822.42$      1,431.32$      2,073.26$      353.82$         268.50$           84,664.36$                         
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  (744.50)$                             
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 1.12$             3.96$             18.42$               3.93$                 15.22$           3.53$             2.36$             0.81$             0.31$                86.27$                                
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   2.13$             -$               -$                   31.19$               49.82$           58.46$           261.99$         452.14$         280.25$           1,135.98$                           
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        26,220.27$    34,340.45$    27,594.45$        16,645.88$        28,913.80$    32,305.73$    31,370.65$    13,992.98$   22,498.38$      368,218.29$                       
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               42.48$           100.26$         43.48$               44.18$               138.96$         91.88$           23.85$           48.31$           18.19$              747.78$                              
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          6,150.77$      6,105.60$      4,966.97$          3,780.45$          6,811.14$      10,031.89$    7,912.03$      3,710.25$      8,322.01$        77,661.80$                         
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             245.68$         284.16$         337.30$             195.48$             213.91$         300.03$         324.58$         138.26$         160.78$           3,400.22$                           
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 0.97$             0.49$             0.14$                 0.55$                 1.33$             0.57$             0.65$             0.80$             0.30$                8.12$                                   
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             242.68$         286.13$         406.99$             188.10$             245.97$         445.31$         517.41$         238.52$         205.25$           3,962.44$                           
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        1,167.95$      -$               -$                   (4.08)$                -$               (265.00)$        -$               -$               -$                  (651.94)$                             
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          5,178.70$      2,225.01$      3,715.26$          3,528.20$          5,853.34$      11,116.06$    13,803.02$    7605.53 15329.97 76,014.43$                         

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     262,413.17$  367,302.52$  1,665,260.72$  603,335.22$     202,428.25$  193,159.19$  210,357.75$  59,804.76$   75,279.50$      7,783,115.67$                    

Initiated 10 10 32 16                   14 16 0 0 0 0 0 98
Amount 5,994.72$          7,438.51$          37,584.03$    9,785.57$      24,738.43$        11,093.59$        $0 $0 $0 $0 -$                  96,634.85$                         
Satisfied/Cancelled 2 22 14                   11 5 0 0 0 0 0 54
Amount 3,289.05$          59,269.06$    11,176.11$    16,883.37$        8,901.77$          $0 $0 $0 $0 -$                  99,519.36$                         

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        62,915.41 $73,379.97 69,762.77 73,853.59 79,186.70 77,452.34$   593,265.28$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  -$               1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        52,698.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,153.86$        58,637.27$    43,077.39$    22,352.48$    22,352.48$   19,449.42$      1,111,600.51$                    
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            300.00$         -$               -$                   (95.92)$              -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  (670.92)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        52,998.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,057.94$        45,522.40$    43,077.39$    22,352.48$    22,352.48$   19,449.42$      2,273,514.72$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                  -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 40,486.46$        8,171.27$          14,087.13$        21,150.43$    8,369.75$      57,646.56$        31,453.76$        2,868.71$      1,334.27$      4,322.48$      $224.90 351.63 190,467.35$                       

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         2,310.80$      4,604.82$      521.72 630.99 68,148.87$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         2,310.80$      4,604.82$      521.72$         630.99$           67,517.88$                         

3,853,089.11$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  339,676.15$  497,317.64$  2,000,494.96$  799,381.67$     324,845.23$  239,881.65$  320,824.23$  160,356.20$ 95,711.54$      10,908,511.89$                  

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956 81,326

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 7564 7256 6785 7921 6811 7049 8002 7327 9139 84,648

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    64,656$    64,668$  64,716$  64,920$  65,088$    64,992$    65,160$      65,352$      65,256$    778,367$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    33,800$    32,188$  33,943$  62,790$  48,529$    31,655$    40,001$      45,890$     62,530$  541,242$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      1,820$      1,295$    840$        1,295$    1,820$      1,645$      1,400$        1,610$       1,785$      18,865$          

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 16 3 7 12 19 21 5 16 11 142                  

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      1,820$      358$        722$        923$        2,990$      4,108$      514$           1,723$     1,339$   21,504.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 12.3 11.9 12 12 13 12 10 13 13.800 13.300 151.300

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 2629 2629 2631 2639 2646 2642 2649 2657 2653 31,650
New taps 4 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 10

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 55.46 53.63 64.74 35.17 44.71 63.88 36.53 93.19 60.48 725.72
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 142.79 19.73 0 0.22 0.33 100.69 9.88 19.19 5.72 360.30
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 1.42 0.29 0.95 0.87 0.58 1.74 1.40 1.83 0.71 10.68
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 79.63 32.02 114.66 39.82 96.8 63.54 64.43 51.18 73.16 887.82
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 3.72 2.08 1.20 10.86 3.88 9.15 3.7 3.87 12.00 63.19
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   4,844.65$   4,844.65$    4,844.65$      $4,844.65 58,135.80$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

35%

18%1%

43%

3%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     August 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



 
 

                
July 5, 2022 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
July 5. 2022 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps, Bill Sexton 
and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis 
Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation; 
Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Walker made a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may 
take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld 
from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the 
Board. 
a) Approval of Minutes for June 6, 2022 Regular Meeting 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-023 Appointing Review Officer 
d) FY23 Salary Schedule/COLA Adjustments 
e) Statutory Re-Appointment of Tax Assessor/Collector 
f) Response to Auditor’s Findings 
g) Resolution 2022-024 July is Parks & Recreation Month 

  
Commissioner Walker made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
   
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Ms. Myrtle Brown, 534 Madison Street, Plymouth, opened a home 
care agency but have run into barriers. Many are elderly or infirmed. They don’t know what 
resources are available to them or how to take advantage of what is available. Wants the County 
to bring forward health and wellness programs to help educate the community and promote 
healthier lifestyles.  
 
 Ms. Kimberly Winstead, 600 Verdant Drive, Greenville, was employed by WRMC as a 
respirator therapist. She has talked to some of the current employees and some of them haven’t 
received benefits or paychecks in the last couple of weeks. She said she was fired and feels like 
she was discriminated against because she was pregnant.  She is now out of work. She stuck with 
the company and feels she was treated unfairly.  Maybe the Board can get some answers for the 
employees from hospital management. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  Mr. Louis Boone, Facilities Director gave 
an update of the activities going on in his Department.  Mr. Boone talked about Housekeeping 
first.  He has two (2) ladies who clean the County building:  the library, 911, County Manager’s 



 
 

office, Probation, Courthouse.  They clean and sanitize all these places. It’s actually too much for 
only two people. 
 
 He has four (4) guys handling maintenance for 22 buildings. The following is just some 
of the duties they preform:   
Fix plumbing 
Clean out commodes, a/c’s 
Move furniture  
Paint, put down carpet/put up paneling 
Rebuild handicap ramps 
Pressure wash buildings 
Put in light switches, light bulbs, ballasts 
 
 Chair Johnson thanked Mr. Boone for the job he does and said she appreciates what he 
does. 
 
 Ms. Keyes said as a retired Department Head she knows Mr. Boone and his staff have a 
hard time keeping up with everything. 
 
 Mr. Potter asked Mr. Boone to talk about the work order system.  Mr. Boone said unless 
it’s an emergency, employees should put in work orders.  It helps him to prioritize what needs to 
be done.  
 
 Mr. Potter commended the work that the maintenance crew does.  
 
 TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT AND ANNUAL SETTLEMENT REPORT:   Ms. 
Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator spoke to the Board about the Order for Ad Valorem Tax 
Collection: 

 
“In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 105-373, I submit the following 

report for Fiscal Year 2021 – 2022: 
 

The total tax levy was $7,581,048.75.  This was the billing for the original scroll, the 
public utility scroll, discoveries, and penalties.  This amount has been adjusted for releases of 
$8,746.18.  The discounts taken through payments received in July and August totaled 
$64,360.62.  This amount does not include the registered motor vehicle levy, this is billed and 
collected through NCVTS.   
 

Per the NCVTS Finance Report, the collections for NCVTS totaled $960,060.90.  The tax 
office does not handle the collection of motor vehicle taxes.  We do process any adjustments to 
value, the situs issues, refunds and all other questions.   
 

The amount of Real and Personal property not collected is $362,078.60. A listing of the 
delinquent taxpayers and the amounts owed are available in our office for your inspection.  
 

The total amount of collections and credits towards the levy was $7,230,390.95 
 

Our collections for prior years’ taxes was $338,030.45.  The amount collected through 
Debt Setoff was $19,282.14, and through wage garnishments and attachments was $54,829.63. 



 
 

 
This year we billed and collected for the Washington County Ad Valorem Tax, the 

Watershed 1972 Ref Tax, Town of Creswell Ad Valorem Tax, Solid Waste User Fee, Albemarle 
Drainage District, and Pungo River Drainage District.  We collected for Drainage District 5. 
   

The tax office staff has made diligent efforts to collect all taxes due.  In addition to our 
efforts in the office, we also work along with Zacchaeus Legal Services in the foreclosure 
proceedings.   
 

I would like to commend all of the tax office staff for their efforts, handling all the issues 
that arise from the billings and collections mentioned above.  I’d also like to recognize the 
Permits office, GIS/Mapping office, Register of Deeds office and the Clerk of Courts office.  We 
work closely with these offices and I appreciate the great working relationship that we have. “  
 
 

 



 
 

 
ORDER 

 
FOR COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES 

 
Fiscal Year 2022 – 2023 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 
 
TO:  SHERRI M. WILKINS   
 Tax Collector of Washington County 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in 
the tax records filed in the office of Washington County Tax Collector and in the tax receipts 
herein delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  Such 
taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of the respective taxpayers in the 
County of Washington, and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require and 
enable you to levy on and sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account 
thereon, in accordance with law.  You are authorized to call upon the Sheriff of Washington 
County and his deputies to levy upon and sell personal property for unpaid taxes when you deem 
it to be advisable. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this 5th day of July, 2022. 
 
 
 
             

Tracy A. Johnson 
Chair 

 
 
             

Julie Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board  

 
 Commissioner Sexton asked why the County has refunds. Ms. Wilkins said it is because 
some folks overpay or a mortgage company overpays for an individual.  
 

Commissioner ___Keyes___ made the motion to authorize Ms. Wilkins to collect the 
ad valorem taxes for FY22-23.   Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 “IN GOD WE TRUST” IN COUNTY BUILDINGS:  Mr. Rick Lanier co-founder of the 
US Motto Committee spoke to the Board about having the motto “In God We Trust in the 
Courtroom, Commissioners’ Room and outside on the County Courthouse. Mr. Lanier said he 
was also a Commissioner in Davidson County. Below are pictures of what this would look like 
in Washington County. 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 This project would be 100% paid for by US Motto Action Committee funds, not tax 
dollars.  Washington County would be the 63rd County to approve this. 
 
 Chair Johnson said the Board has to discuss it more and hopes to vote on it at the August 
meeting. 
 
 WASHINGTON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER (WRMC) UPDATE:  Mr. Frank 
Avignone of WRMC was scheduled to speak at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Potter received a text 
from Mr. Avignone that his attorney advised him not to attend tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Curtis 
called Mr. Avignone’s attorney, which happened to be Mr. Waldrep (the attorney the County 
used during bankruptcy of the hospital.) Mr. Waldrep said he is aware of issues with WRMC’s 
payroll and it has been addressed.  It stems from an electronic records vendor that the hospital 
contracts with.  That’s the extent of the information Mr. Potter received and told the attorney he 
would pass it along to the Board.  
 
 DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE TO THE NCACC’S CONFERENCE AND 
TO THE NACo CONFERENCE:  Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board spoke to the 
Commissioners and noted that she received the following information. 



 
 

 
 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to nominate Commissioner Ann Keyes as the 
Voting Delegate at the NCACC Annual Conference and NCACC Legislative Goals 
Conference.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 

Ms. Bennett would like to ask the Commissioners’ to appoint Ms. Fetima Moore, HR 
Specialist as a replacement for Mr. Harry White (who just retired) to the Employee of the 
Quarter Committee. 
 

Ms. Bennett stated that Ms. Moore has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made the motion to approve the appointment of Ms. Fetima 
Moore, HR Specialist to the County’s Employee of the Quarter Committee.  Commissioner 
Sexton seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon said the budget transfers, budget 
amendments and the financial report were in the Commissioners’ package.  
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
  
 



 
 

  
 



 
 

  
 



 
 

  
 



 
 

  
 
 



 
 

  
 



 
 

Chair Johnson said thanks to Mr. Lance Swindell, EM Coordinator, for the $77,000 
grant he put in for and was approved.   
 
 Ms. Dixon said that the financial report in the Commissioners’ agenda package was 
preliminary. 



 
 

 Ms. Dixon also stated that the auditors would be here during the week of July 18.  She and 
Ms. Tina Dunlow, Finance Office Deputy have uploaded 5-6 pages of information requested by 
the auditors.  This year’s process will be intense and will take a great amount of time.  Below are 
a few of the tasks that must be done: 
 
Actuarials for law enforcement and the hospital  
EMS Billing Reports from Colleton 
ABC Audit 
Closeout of FY 22 and opening of FY 23 
 
 This is due to trying have the audit completed by the end of September to meet the 
deadlines to have the LGC approve our audit at their December meeting for moving forward 
with the new school project. 
 

Commissioner Walker made the motion to approve the budget amendments/ 
transfers as presented above.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
 

Commissioner Sexton mentioned the Eastern Living magazine and that there was an 
article about Mr. Randy Fulford, Recreation Director, and Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning Director. 
The articles were very good and made him feel good about the County’s employees. 
 

Commissioner Keyes said she is serving on the 100 Counties Task Force.  She said there 
will be some EM training at the NCACC Conference.  
 

Commissioner Walker spoke about the concerns citizens were having about the patrolling 
in Roper. He said he is pleased to report that there has been a positive difference noted by Mr. 
Jimmie Sutton. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss 
personnel.  Commissioner Keyes seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Back in Open Session,  Commissioner Walker made a motion to ratify the terms  of the 

Offer to Purchase Contract for the 57.6 Acre Tract of  property located adjacent to the Pines 
Elementary School parcel which was conditionally executed by the County Manager on June 24, 
2022; and also authorize that the County additionally agrees to pay for Seller’s Deed preparation 
and deferred/rollback taxes applicable to the property’s subsequent removal from any existing 
and deferred present use value taxation.  Commissioner Keyes seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to increase the County Manager’s salary to $110,000 
effective July 16, 2022. Commissioner Phelps seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 



 
 

With no further business to discuss, Commissioner Sexton made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  

  
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
           Julius Walker, Jr.         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

    Vice-Chair         Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda August 1, 2022
	8-1-2022 Item 1 (public forum)
	8-1-2022 Item 2 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Insolvents
	“Good Cause” and Late Property Tax Exem..
	Resolution 2022-025 Display In God We Trust National Motto Publicly for BOCC Mtg 20220801 jjb
	BOCC Resolution 22-026 Authorizing 10 year agreement Pettigrew Regional Library 20220729
	Pages from Pettigrew Regional Library Regional Agreement adj for 7.1.22-32
	Washington_County_Motorsports_Grant_Agreement_(MGF-016).docx  JJB
	1. Contract Documents:
	2. Precedence Among Contract Documents:
	3. Effective Period:
	4. Grantee’s Duties:
	5. Agency’s Duties:
	6. Letter of tax- exempt status:
	7. Reporting Requirements:
	8. Payment Provisions:
	9. Contract Administrators:
	10. Disbursements:
	11. Outsourcing:
	12. Ethics Law Compliance:
	13. Cost Principles:
	14. Final Reports and Certifications:
	15. Monitoring and Auditing:
	16. Grant Agreement With Sub-Grantee(s):
	17. Repayment of Grant Funds to Agency:
	18. Termination:
	19. Title VI Certification:
	20. Federal Funds Accountability and Transparency Act
	21. Authorized Signature Warranty:
	ATTEST
	[OFFICIAL SEAL]
	DEFINITIONS
	Relationships of the Parties
	Indemnity and Insurance
	Default and Termination
	Intellectual Property Rights
	Compliance with Applicable Laws
	Oversight
	Miscellaneous

	SCRAP_TIRE_RESOLUTION 2022-028 for BOCC Mtg 20220801 jjb
	8-1-2022 Item 3 Recognition of Leadership Academy Participants
	8-1-2022 Item 4 Geenex Solar, LLC, Update on Hwy 99 Project.docx
	8-1-2022 Item 5 Dept. Info--MTW Health Dept.
	8-1-2022 Item 6 Late Business Personal Property Listing- App for Exempt-Exclu
	Albemarle Beach Solar LLC Application  BPP Listing
	Albemarle Beach Solar LLC Late App Approved 080122
	Albemarle Beach Solar LLC Late App Denied 080122
	8-1-2022 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	“From: Owens, Charlan <charlan.owens@ncdenr.gov>  Sent: Thursday, July 7, 2022 7:42 AM  Subject: Coastal Resources Advisory Council Appointments - 2nd Solicitation

	CRAC Nominations 2nd Solicitation 2022 signed
	113A-105 Coastal Area Management Act Coastal Resources Adviroy Council
	8-1-2022 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Trans & Budget Amend
	Finance Report 7-26-2022
	8-1-2022 Item 9 Other Items
	Reports for 8-1-22 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	8-1-2022 Item 10 Closed Session
	7-5-2022 minutes



